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Walker Greenbank PLC is a luxury
interior furnishings group whose
brands include Harlequin, Sanderson,
Morrns & Co and Zoffany Our brands
are targeted at the mid to upper end
of the premium market. They have
worldwide distribution including
prestigious showrooms at Chelsea
Harbour, London and the D&D
bullding, Manhattan, New York Half
of the brand'’s turnover is sourced
In-house from the Group's own
specialist manufacturing facilities.
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At a glance

Qur brands

Walker Greenbank PLC | Harlequin

Harlequin 15 a core supplier of high
I5d iUXUI’y Interior quality, design lead collections to the
furmshlngs group mid to premium end of the worldwide
furoishings market
of comparies
which d@Slg n, A reco?jmsec::rand Iea?letr, it has
enjoyed anather year of strong
manufacture, market growth Its product portfolio
has been sigmficantly expanded
ancﬁ dlStrlbUte to appeal to a greater breadth
wallcoverings, of consummers
furnishing fabrics and
associated products for

the consumer market Sanderson
Founded in 1860 and granted a

Royal Warrant in 1823, Sanderson s
one of the most renowned brands In
intenors wosldwide Offenng classic,
inspirational product often based

on documents from its extensive
archive It 1s aimed at the mid to
upper level of the interiors market

Morns & Co

The Morris & Co business hasa
hentage that dates back to the mid
19th century when it was founded
by Wilham Maorris, the acclaimed
designer Its unique hentage

15 preserved in the modern
interpretation of its ugh quality
fabnes and wallcoverings

Zoffany

Zoffany offers a range of products
of the highest quality including
wallpaper, fabrics, tnmmings,
carpets, paint and furniture

The designs are inspired by the
rich traditions of the past but
look equally at home in
contemporary Interiors

WALKER GREENBANK PLC
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Our manufactunng

Anstey

Anstey Wallpaper Company is the world's leading
specialist comrmussion printer The business operates

at the premwm end of the market, offering a umque
combination of design, printing and finishing of
wallcoverings by gravure, rotary, flexo, surface, screen
and hand block printing methods As well as producing
for the Walker Greenback brands 1t also produces for
third party customers

Standfast

Standfast & Barracks 15 sitvated in Lancaster and was
bought by Walker Greenbank in March 2000 The
busimess 1s acknowledged as a worldwide leader in its
field Standfast speciahses in high quality volume vat
printing and dyeing, and rotary screen-printing of fabrics
Barracks speciahses in flatbed printing, concentrating on
very high speaification for the exclusive furishing and
apparel markets, printing on a wide range of fabrics

Qur distribution

USA

Our distnbution in the USA 1s carned out by Walker
Greenbank Inc vtlising third party showrooms
supported by Walker Greenbank Inc offices based in

New Jersey and our own showroom in Manhattan

France

Qur distribution in France 15 by Arthur Sanderson
France through a network of sales agents, our own
sales force and a showroom 1n Rue du Mail, Pans

ltaly

We have a showroom and offices in Rome
vtilising sales agents throughout the country

WALKER GREENBANK PLC
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Our brands - Harlequin

Harlequin has continued its impressive
sales performance with double figure sales
growth for the third successive year The
growth was driven by woven fabrics and
wallpaper, with the growth broadly similar
in both domestic and export markets

167

SALES GROWTH

01 COLLECTION KALAYA DESIGNS OLEANAANDREVA
02 COLLECTION LUCIDOWALLPAPERS DESIGNPRATO
03 COLLECTION KALAYA DESIGNS KEONA ANDELONI
04 COLLECTION LUCIDO WALLPAPERS

DESIGN AVELLING

02 L)
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Our brands — Sanderson and Morris & Co.
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SALES GROWTH
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COLLECTION PARCHEMENT FLOWERS
DESIGN GROVE PARK

COLLECTION MORR!S EMBROIDERIES
DESIGN TULIP EMBROIDERY
COLLECTION MORRIS EMBROIDERIES
DESIGN TULIP EMBROIDERY
COLLECTION COUNTRY LINENS
DESIGN ROSEANNA
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Following significant continued
investment in product, sales of the
Sanderson and Morris & Co brands

have gathered momentum The growth
has been across all product categones,
woven and printed fabrics and wallpaper
Geographically sales are up equally in the
domestic and export markets
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Qur brands - Zoffany
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SALES GROWTH

01
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COLLECTION VERLAINE DESIGN VERLAINE
COLLECTION FONTAINE PRINTS

DESIGN SNOW BLOSSOM

COLLECTION FLEUR ROCOCO

DESIGN CHERRY BLOSSOM

COLLECTYON FLEUR ROCOCO

DESIGN FIR TREES

WALKER GREENBANK PLC
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The focusing of the brand on 1ts core and
traditional design values has renewed
recognition of the brand by the design
community and re-invigorated the sales
of older collections which, combined
with the strength of the new collections,
has helped grow sales significantly
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Quality manufacturing

Anstey

0 Anstey has further consolidated its

/0 position as market leader in UK wallpaper
manufacturing in the mid to premium
end of the market Its continued

commitment to investment in factory

efficiencies and improved service to

Its customers, combined with mited

competition and high barriers to entry,

have helped grow overall sales by 19%

THIRD PARTY SALES GROWTH

01

01 TRIMMING TOWIDTH IN LINE
02 PRINTED REELS OF WALLPAPER
03 ENGRAVED SCREENS FORFLAT BED PRINTING
04 DIGITALLY PRINTED PREMIUM
FURNISHING FABRICS
05 NEW 20 COLOUR RDTARY PRINT MACHINE

[
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Standfast

Standfast has experienced challenging 0
market conditions during the year The /O
move In fashion trends In the interior design =~ ™

market towards colour and design has not
yet fed through into the print market Fewer
print collections were launched this year than
last which has led to a reduction in revenue
of 4% We continue to invest in caprtal
equipment to improve factory efficiency

THIRDPARTY SALES DECLINE

03 04

Q5

WALKER GREENBANK PLC
COMPANY OVERVIEW



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

F0245"

REVENUE UP 15% TQ £62 45 MILLION
(2007 £54 37 MILLION)

=310™

PROFIT BEFORE TAX UP 119% TO £3 10 MILLION
{2007 £1 42 MILLION EXCLUDING EXCEPTIONAL
CREDIT OF £1 28 MILLION)

390™

OPERATING PROFIT UP 60% TO £3 956 MILLION
(2007 £2 48 MILLION BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL CREPIT)

35"

GEARING REDUCED TO 35% (2007 66%) WITH
SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS INCREASED TO £20 B0 MILLION
(2007 £12 94 MILLION)

"We are confident that our strategy will deliver growth
in both revenue and profits in the coming years

Four months of our current financial year are now
completed, during which time the Group has continued
to trade strongly We remain confident of a very
satisfactory outcome for the year'

[12)
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Chairman’s Statement

It gives me great pleasure to report another
year of excellent progress The sustained
strength of our brands, the quality of our
niche manufacturing and favourable market
conditions have resulted in revenue growth of
15% Operational gearing has translated this
growth into a 60% increase in operating profit
to £3,961,000 before exceptional items

COLLECTION EMBRACE DESIGN PROMISE

“OLLECTION AMARI CESIGN AERIAL =
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OVERVIEW
We have made considerable progress in delivering our key
strateqic orgaric growth objectives Our brand sales have grown
17% in the UK retail market and have added 17% n Europe and
the Rest of the World Our US business, which is still a relatively
small part of aur Group, has grown 2%, equivalent to 13% in local
currency Particularly encouraging 15 the 58% increase achieved in
our fledgling Contracts business Finally our manufacturnng units
have continued to gain market share, growang the third party
revenues by 8%

All our brands, which include Harlequin, Sanderson (including
Morns & Co and Zoffany, have performed strongly Qur
Harlequin brand has further re-enforced its position as the pre-
erninent brand in the mid-market Continued heavy investment
in new product and marketing has helped both revenue and
profits to grow further Sustained investment in product and
marketing since we acquired Sanderson, our globally recognised
brand, has helped to, accelerate its revenue growth and achieve
a substantial improvement in profits Having successfully
re-established Zoffany as a leading brand in the premium end

of the market, focused product investment in this and prior years
has helped achieve strong revenue growth and a substantial
improvernent in profits Continued investment in our
Manhattan-based business in the Unuted States has helped to
increase revenue in local currency However, the weak dollar and
testing market conditions mean that the business continues to
make a small foss We remain confident that there 1s considerable
medium- to long-term growth potental for the Group in this
important market

Anstey, our wallpaper factory in Loughborough, continues to
benefit from the growing populanty of wallpaper The limited
manufacturing capacity at the mid to premium end of the
market and high barriers to entry, combined with 1ts continued
commitment to investment In factory efficiency and improved
service to our customers, have helped the business grow its
revenue and improve profits threefold Standfast, cur fabnic
printing factory based in Lancaster, continues to invest in factory
efficent capiial equipment, however, shightly tougher market
conditions have led to a small fall in revenue and profits over
the same period last year

FINANCIALS
The financial results have been prepared under International
Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) and the effect on the
Group's results of adopting these standards has been munimal
Revenue increased 15% to £62,448,000 from £54,369,000 over
last year The underlying operating profit for the year increased
60% to £3,961,000 {2007 £2,481,000) Profit before tax has
icreased 15% to £3,099,000 (2007 £2,694,000) Underlying
profit before tax after adjusting for an exceptional pensicn credit
included in last year of £1,276,000 has increased 119% Profit
after tax increased to £8,171,000 (2007 £2,636,000) with the
nclusion of a deferred tax asset of £5,101,000 (2007 nil) This
has been recognised as the Group s now confident aof utilising
the histarical taxable losses by delivering sustainable taxable
profits into the foreseeable future

The earnings per share were 14 49p (2007 4 67p) reflecang the
recognition of the deferred tax credit An adjusted earnings per



T COLLECTION AMARANTA DESIGN FORESTA

share that excludes the benefit of the deferred tax credit would
be 5 44p (2007 2 41p} The exceptional profit from the pension
deficit reduction exerase of £1,276,000 has been excluded in
the adjusted 2007 earnings per share

The Group’s met indebiedness at the year end was £7,289,000
(2007 £8,604,0600) This represents a reduction in gearing to
35% (2007 66%) The cash inflow from operating activiies was
£3,542,000 (2007 £2,276,000) Shortly before the year end, the
Group purchased 1,415,093 of the Company’s shares an the open
rmarket for a total amount of £612,000 in order to satisfy awards
made 1n May 2007 under the Long Term Incenuive Scheme

DIVIDEND
The Drirectors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
atthig point in time We remain focused on further cash
generation, reducing our gearing and pension deficit whilst
remaining alert to both organic and acquisition growth
opportunitgs as they anse

PEOPLE
0n 19 Septemnbrer 2007 Terry Stannard joined the Board
as a Non-exacutive Ciractor His broad business expenence,
particularly of marketing and international business, will be
of great value to the Group n future years

0n 12 February 2008 Charles Gray, a Non-executive Director,
retired from the Board | would like to thank Charles for his
input to Walker Greenbank’s Board and wish tum well for

his retirement

I would like to thank all our employees for their continued
suppert Their commitment and enthusiasm have contributed
significantly to the improvemenz in shareholder value

OUTLOOK
Owr Group 1s now firmly established as a profitable cash generative
business, with a strengthening balance sheet Qur premium end
brands, supported by our niche manufactuning, contnbute to
our position as a market leader in the luxury intenor furmishings
market We are particularly well positioned to take advantage
of the growing trend towards colour and design in both fabnc
and wallpaper

John Sach in his Chief Executive’s Review highlights the range of
strategic growth opporiunities the Group 15 pursuing to Increase
its presence in the worldwide luxury interior furnishings market
We are confident that our strategy will deliver growth in both
revenue and profits in the coming years Four months of cur
current financial year are now completed, dunng which time the
Group has continued to trade strongly We remain confident of a
very satisfactory outcome for the year

Mg

lan Kirkham

Non-executive Chairman

11 June 2008
03
WALKER GREENBANK PLC
ANNUAL REPGRT

AND ACCOUNTS 2008




Chief Executive's Review

| am delighted to provide a review of the
Group’s progress In the year to January 2008,

a transformational period in the Group's
development Looking back, the year to January
2007 was a year in which we successfully
achieved the Group's recovery, fully restonng its
financial stability and creating a solid platform
for future growth The year to January 2008
was a year 1 which we built on the recovery of
2007 by making excellent progress in executing
our strategy of delivering earnings growth

by exploiting the organic growth and other
opportunities that exist within the Group

as a result of the strength of the Group's

brand assets

1 COLLECTION ARCHIVEPRINTS Il DESIGN CHAMBALON
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STRATEGY
The cornerstene of our strategy 1s cur sigmficant INvestment In
the design and marketing of exciting new products for our four
brands This commitrent to our brands has fuelled our sales
growth to date and underpins our growth strategy, which
comprises five key elements

- Organic growth - to continue to exploit the organic growth
opportunities that exist for our Group in the UK retail market

< Geographic expansion - to invest In marketing and
distnbution in the North American market, where cur
Gioup 15 currently immature relative to our peers, and 1o
focus on the distnbution and marketing of our brands in
Europe and the Rest of the World, where again as a Group
we are presently underdeveloped

- Contract sales - to drive the expansion of our fledgling
Contracts business through further investment in people
and contract specific product supported by the strength
of our brand names and our manufactunng capability
predominantly focusing at the mid to upper end of the
contract market

- Licensing tncome - 1o exploit the global recogrition of the
Sanderson and Morns & Co brand names to develop further
licensing arrangements

- Acquisitions - to evaluate acquisition oppartunities that
may fit wath our current brand portfolio and potentially
provide synergistic and earnings enhancing opportunities

THE BRANDS

Harlequin
The Harlequin brand has cantinued its impressive financial
performance, growing 1ts sales in the year by 16%, the third
successive year of double digrt sales growth, further re-enforaing
its position as the pre-eminent brand in the UK cnid-market
The sales growth was driven by woven product, up 24%, and
wallpaper, up 6% Pnnted fabnc sates have remainad essentially
flat year on year Sales growth was broadly similar in both the
home and export markets

Following the launch of an extensive range of products
speafically for the contract market, and supparted by the
expansion of the Contracts business, contract sales have grown
92% 1n the year Harlequin continues to increase uts product
offer through the continual Jaunch ot new and innovative
products It1s also tnvesting significantly ;n marketing and
advertising to pramote the products This investment combined
with the sales growth and maintained margins have helped
improve cperating profit by 15%

Zoffany

As reported in the first half the focusing of the brand onits

core and traditional design values is now essentially complete
The brand has re-established itself within the design community
and its newly launched ranges are performing strongly

The renewed recognition of the brand by the design community
has rerwigorated the sales of older collections whuch, combined
with the strength of the new collections, has helped sales grow
year on year by 24% The growth has been led by wallpaper and
woven fabric, both up 27%, with printed fabric up only 1% Salesin
the UK were up 27% and export sales were up 20%, both helped by
the Group's focus on contract sales, which were up 25%



T COLLECTION BARGELLO DESIGN BARGELLO

The sales growth and improving margins, combined with
significant investrnent in product develepment and marketing,
has helped Zoffany improve from a break even position last year
to a 5% operating profit for the year to January 2008

Arthur Sanderson & Sons incorporating

the Mornis & Co brand

Following significant investment in product, sales of the Sanderson
brand have gathered momentum, underpinned by the brand's
unnvalled global recognizion Sales have grown 22% with growth
across all product categones led by woven fabric, up 49%, wallpaper
up 17% and printed fabric up 9% Geographically sales were up
equally In the UK and export markets, with both markets helped by
a 31% increase in contract sales New licence arrangements have
been signed in tableware and stationery However, licence income
duning the year fell due to tougher trading conditions in Australasia
and a lower sterling return from Japan due to the weakness of the
yen Overall, sales growth at Sanderson and Morns & Co, along with
significantly increased product development and marketing and
improving margns, have helped to deliver a more than six-fold
Increase In operating profit

Manufacturing

We have two freehold printing facilities in the UK Anstey, our
wallpaper factory in Loughborough and Standfast, our fabric
printing factory in Lancaster Both factories offer highly
specialised printing, and their UK location brings benefits
inctuding the ability to print very short runs and easy accessibility
for UK designers to visit the factones dunng print work In
addition to printing the wallpaper and fabrics for the Group's
own brands, the factones pnnt for third party customers

Anstey

Anstey has further consolidated 115 positron as market leader in
UK wallpaper manufacture in the rmud to premium end of the
market [ts continued commitment to investment in factory
efficiency and improved service to 1ts customers, combined

with hmited compeution and high barners to entry have helped
grow Anstey’s overall sales 19% Third party sales grew 38%,

as more customers seek to satisfy mounting consumer demand
for wallpaper Group sales grew 5% and third party sales now
account for half of Anstey’s averall turnover The growing
turnover, improved factory efficiencies and tight overhead cost-
control helped Anstey more then treble its operating profit

Standfast

Standfast has expenienced challenging market conditions during
the year The move in fashion trends in the interior design
market towards colour and design have not yet fed through imo
the print market Fewer print collections this year than last led

to a reduction in Group revenue of 2% Third party sales also
declined by 4%, giving an overall reduction in total sales of 3%
The lawer activity this year put pressure on factory throughput
and led to a reduction in margins and a subsequent dechne in
overall profits year on year Whilst this market remains difficult at
the moment we are confident that fashion trends will eventually
redress this situation and we continue to mvest in capital
equipment to iImprove factory efficiency

OVERSEAS
us
Overall, reported sales increased year on year by only 5%
However, when adjusting far the currency movement due to
the weakness of the dollar, sales were up 13% This improvement
has been drven predominantly by Harlequin The second half
of the year proved more difficult than the first, due to the well
documented economic conditions in the US The US sull forms
a relatively small part of the overall Group and despite testing
market conditions we continue to invest strongly in marketing,
patterning and sample support, as we firmly beleve in the
medium- to long-term potential in this market This continued
investment means that we sull continue to lose money n the
US However, it 1s important to recognise that overall, with the
sales from the UK 1o the US subsidiary and the downsiream
manufacturing, the US business is stift an important profit
contributor 1o the Group

Europe

The Group’s distnbution businesses in Rome and Paris grew

their combined revenue 4% and returned a small operating

profit During the year, we employed an experenced European
development director and are currently strategically reviewing the
way we do business in this important marketplace Relative 1o our
peer group our overall sales are low and we strongly believe that
this market cffers great potential for the Group in the future

SUMMARY
All of our brands continue to perform strongly The considerable
investment we have made in product and marketing in recent
years places us In a strang position to exploit both the continuing
and new business opportunities that exist within the Group We
remain gonfident about the future progress the Group will make

Sach

Grddp Chief Executive Officer

11June 2008
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Financial Review

UNDERLYING OPERATING PROFIT
{EQCO)

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
{£000)

GEARING AT YEAR END
(%)
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INCOME STATEMENT AND EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
The Chairman’s Statement and Chief Executive’s Review provide
an analysis of the key factors contrbuting to the continued
impravements in operating profit and profit before taxation

In addition to the information on our brands and production
faclities included in these reports, the Group has included in
note 2 of this announcement, information on our business
segments, as required by International Financial Reporting
Standards (iFRS)

Both the 2008 and 2007 results are impacted by exceptional
items In the year to January 2008 the Group has recognised a
deferred tax asset of £5,101,000 as the Group s confident of
utiising historical corporation tax losses as a result of foresesable
sustainable future profits Last year there was an exceptional
profit of £1 276,000 ansing from the pension deficit reduction
exercise Both items have enhanced the basic aarnings per share
(EPS), but are removed in the analys:s of adjusted EPS discussed
below, to enable better companson of the underlying
performance of the Group

EARNINGS PER SHARE
The basic and diluted EPS was 14 49p (2007 4 67p) The
underlying EPS was 5 44p for the current year (2007 2 41p),
and s reconciled to basic and diluted as follows

2008 2007

£000 £000

Profit after tax per the accounts 8,171 2,636
Exclude exceptional benefit pension

dehait reduction exercise - (1.276)

Exclude the recognition of deferred tax (5,101) -

Adjusted profit after tax 3,070 1,360

Adjusted EPS 5 44p 241p

The number of shares in 1ssue remained constant, however,
on 16 January 2008, 700,000 shares were purchased and
brought into Treasury and an 17 January 2008, 715,093 shares
were purchased and also brought into Treasury The weighted
average number of shares reduced to 56,397,000 for the year
ended 31 January 2008 from 56,457,000 in the year ended

31 January 2007

DISPOSALS
There were no major disposals dunng the year

INTEREST

The interest charge for the year was £§81,000 (2007
£964,000) including amortisation of debt issue costs capitahsed

Net pension refated income duning the year was £119,000
(2007 charge £99,000) This 1s a consequence of the significant
reduction i the gross pension liability compared with the
previous year

CURRENT TAXATION
There 1s asmall corporation tax charge ansing from the taxable
profits at the Italian subsidiary The Group continues to review
the overseas tax position 10 ensure every opportunity s
considered to mimmise the amount incyrred

DEFERRED TAXATION

During the year the Group has recogrised a deferred tax credit of
£5,101,000 predominantly ansing from corporation tax losses
incurred i prior years The asset has been recognised this year as
the Group 15 now confident of a sustainable future profit stream

Due to the substantial nature of these corporation tax losses
(£23 million) the Group does not anticipate sncurring o paying



UK corporation tax for the immediate future However, as the
majonty of the corporation tax losses have now been recognised
as a deferred tax asset in future years there will be a deferred tax
charge in the Income Statement untd such time as the deferred
tax asset has been fully utiised at which point the Group will
incur and pay UK corporation tax

The Group also conunues to recognise the deferred tax asset
ansing from the Pension Deficit As the Pension Defiait has
reduced during the year the reduction of the associated deferred
tax asset has been recognised

OPERATING CASH FLOW
The Group generated net cash nflow from operating actwvities
dunng the year of £3,542,000 (2007 £2,276,000} It pad
interest of £956,000 (2007 £913,000) and capital expenditure
of £1,674,000 (2007 £1,444,000) The deprecation and
amortisation charge during the penod continued to be greater
than the required capital expenditure

The Group made additional payments to the pension schernes
of £1,059,000 (2007 £898,000) to reduce the deficit, part of
the ongoing planned reducuon

The Group purchased 1,415,093 shares at a cost of £612,000 1n
order to sausfy awards made 1n May 2007 under the Long Term
Incentive Plan

Net debt in the Group has reduced by £1,315,000 to £7,289,000
(2007 £8,604,000)

PENSION DEFICIT
The pension defiait has reduced further this year The key factors
affecting the movement in the deficit have been firstly ongoing
contributions of £1,290,000 from the Company to reduce the
deficit, secondly a reduction in the labilities of the scheme
ansing from the increase in discount rates during the year, and
lastly the adopuon of PAQ2 with medium cohort mortality
tables which has increased the defiait The impact of these
factors s shown as follows

2008
£000
Defct at beginning of the year (5,518)
Current service cost (231)
Other finance income 350
Contnbutions 1,290
Impact of mortalty tables (2,868)
Actuanal gains pnimarily from the change in
discount factor 3,568
Gross deficit at the end of the year (3,409)

LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
A conditional award of shares was granted to the executive
Directors and certain employees under the Long Term Incentive
Plan {LTIP) on 28 May 2007 There has been a charge of
£429,000 (2007 £143,000) 1n the income Statement for this
and pravious awards

GEARING

The gearing level for the Group fell during the year to 35% at
31 January 2008 (2007 66%)

FUNDING
The Group utiises facilities provided by Barclays Bank Plc The
facilivies were put in place on 17 July 2007 replacing previous
facilises from another provider There 1s a property facility
avarfable over a 10 year penod There 15 afso a faclity inked to
working capital which allows the Group to manage its cash more
effectively during the seascnal fluctuations in working capital

associated with the industry 1n which the Group operates This
facility has an mitial three year term The total facihities have a
tirmut of £17 0 million

All of the Group bank facikties remain secured by first fixed and
floating charges over the Group's assets

GOING CONCERN
The Directors are confident, after having made appropriate
enquines, that the Group and Company have adequate
resources to continue 1n the foreseeable future For this
reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the accounts

IFRS
The Group has adopted IFRS for the year ended 31 January 2008
and restated the comparative results for the prior year The
impact of adopting IFRS has been kmited A Restatemernt
document was issued on 28 September 2007 giving full details
of the impact of the adoption

TREASURY POLICY
The Group’s treasury policy is controlled centrally in accordance
with procedures approved by the Board 1t1srun prudently as a
central Group function, providing services to the other Group
comparues and adopts a nsk averse strategy

The main risks covered by this policy are interest rate nisk, foreign
currency risk and hquidity risk

INTEREST RATE RISK
The Group has continued 16 maintain its debt in floating rate
instrurments in order to benefit from the lower rates availlable
and the increasing reduction in borrowings This policy remains
constantly under review to ensure interest cost 1s mumimised The
viability of hedging instruments that would imit the impact of
interest rate movements will continue to be reviewed based on
the Board's perception of future rate increases and the reducing
level of borrowings

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK
All faraign currencies are bought and sold centrally on behalf of
the Group Regular reviews take place of the foreign currency
cash flows and any unmatched exposures are covered by forward
contracts wherever economically practical

The Group does not trade in inancial instruments and hedges
are only used for known cash flows

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group ensures that it has adequate faciities available to
its short-term and medium-term commitments

Alan Dix
Group Finance Direcior
11)une 2008
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Directors and Advisers
|
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DIRECTORS

lan Kirkham (58)

Non-executive Chairman {A, R, N)

lan Joned the Board in Apnl 2002 He has considerable
expenience in manufacturing and distnbution businesses in the
UK Home Improvement and Bullding Products Markets He was,
for seven years, Chief Executive of Headlam Group plc and s
currently Chairman or director of several private companies
inchuding CET Glass Processors Holdings Limited, Gilt Edged
Promotions Limited and Zyphos Limited lan 15 also Chairman
of the Trustees of UCARE, a urological cancer research charity

Terry Stannard {58)

Non-executive Director (A, R, N)

Terry joined the Board as a Non-executive Director in September
2007 He has particular expertise in the international expansion
of brand-based businesses and a track record of value creation
His executive career included senior roles at United Biscuits and
the positions of Chief Executive of Unig plc and Chief Executive
of Terranova Foods ple Since 2001, he has focused on Non-
executive apporitments at both quoted and unquoted
businesses His current portfolio includes Non-executive roles at
Brintons Ltd, Bradford & Sons Ltd, Macphie of Glenbervie L1d
and Moloney Ventures Ltd He 1s also a Non-executive Director
of the UK subsichanies of Singapore-listed Singapore Food
Industries Ltd

John Sach (52)

Chief Executive Officer

John joined the Group in 1994 as Group Finanaal Cantroller and
was appointed to the Board as Group Finance Directer in 1999
He was appointed Chief Executive Officer in May 2004

David Smallndge (52)

Executive Director

Dawvid joined the Group in 2002 with a wide experience as a
maniaging director in the consumer products services He was
appointed to the Board in December 2004 following his
appointment as Managing Director of the Group's three main
fabric and wallcovering brands, Harlequin, Sanderson and Zoffany

Alan Dix (49}

Group Finance Director

In July 2005, Alan Dix was appointed Group Finance Director
He s a Chartered Accountant with experience from a broad
range of industries

A - Audit Committee
R - Remuneration Committee
N - Nominations Commuttee
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Report of the Directors

The Directors submit their annual report together with the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings ('the Group’) for
the year ended 31 january 2008

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The prncpal activites of the Group are the design, manufacture, marketing and distribution of wallcovenings, furmishing fabrics and associated products
for the consumer market A review of activities Is given in the Chief Executive’s Review which, taken with the Chairman's Statement, the Financal Review
and the other informauon in the Report of the Directors, represents the Group’s Business Review

The Directors do not expect there to be any significant change n the prinaipal actvities of the Group in the foreseeable future

GROUP RESULT

The prafit before taxauon amounted to £3,099,000 (2007 £2,694,000) The Directors do not recommend payment of a final ordinary dividend
{2007 no dividend paid), which leaves a surplus of £8,171,000 to be transferred to reserves (2007 £2,636,000)

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
The XPls for the business are primnanly financial

2008 2007
Underlying sales growth 15% 15%
Operating profit margin before exceptional items 63% 4 6%
Geanng 35% 66%
Pensicn deficit as a percentage of shareholders’ funds 16% 43%
Underlying EPS S 44p 241p

BUSINESS RISKS
The Directars have identified a number of financial nsks for the Group and these are explained and the degree of nisk highlighted in note 2 of the financiai
statements and In the Financial Review Where commercially appropriate the Group insures against finanual loss caused by unforeseen events by the means
of insurance polices Apart from the impact of a global nature or a sigruficant downturn in the UK market there are no other significant business nisks
Whilst the dollar rematns weak this will affect trading of our business in North America but this business is not currently a significant proht contributor to
the overall Group

PENSIONS

The Group aperates defined benefit and defined contribution scheres in the UK and overseas for all qualifying employees Further information on the
schemes and details of the valuations are given In note 22 to the accounts

EMPLOYEES
The Group keeps its ermplayees informed on matters affecting therm and on the progress of the Group by way of mfermal meetings and consultation with
employees representatives All Group businesses apply the principles of equal opportunity in recruitment, career progression and remuneration Disabled
persons are given fufl and fair consideration for employment where an appropniate vacancy occurs, having regard to ther particular aptitudes and abiliies
Whenever possible, arrangements are made for the continuing employment of persens who have become disabled during service and for appropnate
training of all disabled employees, who are given equal consideration with all other employees in promotion and career development

PAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS

The Group agrees terms and conditions for 1ts business transactions with suppliers and makes payment in accordance with those terms and conditions
subjecs to the supplier meeting its obligations The amount of trade creditors shawn in the consolidated balance sheet at 31 January 2008 represents
98 days {2007 97 days) of average purchases during the year for the Group

The Company s a holding company and has no meaningful equivalent of creditor days

MARKET VALUE OF INTERESTS IN LAND INCLUDING BUILDINGS

The Directors do not believe there 15 a significant difference between the current market value of the Group s interests in fand including buildings and their
carrying values in the financial staterments

POLITICAL AND CHARITABLE DONATIONS
The Group has not made any political donations (2007 £nil} Duning the year the Group made no chantable donations (2007 £nil)
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DIRECTORS AND THEIR INTERESTS
The Directors in office at 31 Janwary 2008 and therr interests in the shares of the Company were as follows

1pordinary  1p ordinary

shares shares

I1january 31 Janvary

2008 2007

Number Number

| Kirkharn 800,000 730,000
T Stannard 35,000 -
] D Sach 590,000 590,000
D H Smallndge 100,000 100,000
AN Dix 112,000 70,000
C Gray® 150,000 150,000

* Includes 50 00O shares held by Mr Gray s wife
The following Directors all purchased 20,000 shares on 24 Apnil 2008 | D Sach, D H Smalindge and A N Dix
The share price on 1 February 2007 was 49 5p and on 31 January 2008 was 40 75p

LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
On 24 May 2007, conditional awards of shares were granted to the Executive Directors and certain employees under the Long Term Incentive Plan ( LTIP )

The share price at the date of grant was 53p In accordance with the rules of the LTIP the shares awarded will vest four years after the date of grant subject
to the Group ach:eving profit before tax targets

At the year end, awards have been granted for a maximum of 3,964,093 shares

The awards granted to the Executive Directors are
Vesting  1p ordinary

date shares

] D Sach 25072009 805,298
23052011 495,283

D HSmallndge 25072006 745297
23052011 353,774

AN Dix 25072009 498,405

23052011 283019

0n 19 September 2007 Terry Stannard was appointed as a Non-executive Director On 12 February 2008 Charles Gray retired from the Board
The Board of Directors as at the date of this report 15 set cut on page 8, together wath biographical details

At the forthcoming Annual General Meating (AGM) Terry Stannard will stand for efection following his appointment since the last AGM fan Kirkham and
Dawvic Smallndge wil retire by rotation and being eligible will offer themselves for re-election

EXECUTIVE SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Dunng the year, no options over erdinary shares were exercised or granted and options over 70,000 ordinary shares have lapsed The executive share
option scheme 15 now closed

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN MATERIAL CONTRACTS
None of the Directors had any matenial interest in any contract dunng the year which was sigruficant to the business of the Group

ACQUISITION OF OWN SHARES

0n 16 January 2008 the Company made market purchases into Treasury of 700,000 ordinary shares of 1p each at a price of 42 25p per ordinary share
On 17 January 2008 the Company made market purchases into Treasury of 715,093 ordinary shares of 1p each at a price of 43 5p per ordinary share
The total number of shares held in Treasury 15 1,415,093, and represents 2 40% of the 1ssued ordinary capital of the Company It is intended that
these ordinary shares will be used to satsfy the awards made under the LTIP in May 2007
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Report of the Directors continued

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS
At 30 May 2008 the Company 15 aware of the followings substanual shareholdings in its ordinary share capital, comparauves at 16 Apnl 2007 are shown
Gartmore Investment Limited 22 70% (2007 18 43%), Blackrock Mernll Lynch § 21% (2007 036%), Brewin Dalphin 4 71% (2007 4 64%), Barclays Wealth
4 03% (2007 535%), Axa Framhington 3 39% (2007 3 39%) and Walker Greenbank EBT 4 43% (2007 4 32%)

SPECIAL BUSINESS

At the AGM on 23 July 2008 1tems 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10 will be proposed as Special Business Cetails of the business can be found i the Notice of the Annual
General Meeting separately distnibuted to shareholders

AUDITORS
A resolution to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the AGM

So far as each of the Directors in office at the date of this report 1s aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the Group s auditors are unaware
Relevant information is defined as information needed by the Group s auditers in connection with preparing their report Each Director has taken all steps
that he cught to have taken to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Repert and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulanens

Company law requires the Directors te prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group as at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Group for that penad

In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are required to
(1) select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
(11} make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

(1) state whether apphcable accounting standards have been followed, subject ta any matenal departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements,

(v) prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presume that the Group will cantinue in business,
inwhich case there should be supporung assumptions or qualifications as necessary

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reascnable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Group and te enakle them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 and Companies Act 2006, as appropriate

They are also responsible for safequarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonabte steps for the prevention and detection of fraud

and other irregulariies

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation

and dissemination of financial statements may differ from lequslaticon in other junsdictions

By pyder of the Board

Ulthn Wilson
Coxypany Secretary
11 Juke 2008

Registared Office
Chalfent House
Oxford Road
Denham UBS 4DX

Registered number 61880
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the members of Walker Greenbank PLC

We have audited the Group financial statements of Walker Greenbank PLC for the year ended 31 January 2008 which comprise the Consolidated Income
Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Recogmised Income and Expense, the Consohdated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement,
and the related notes These Group finanaal statements have been prepared under the accounting pelicies set out therein

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Walker Greenbank PLC for the year ended 31 January 2008

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adapted by the European Union are set out in the Statement of Directors Responsibihities

Our responsibility 15 to audit the Group financial statements 1n accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards

on Auditing {UK and Ireland) This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with
Section 235 of the Compamas Act 1385 and for no other purpcse We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose
or to any other person to whom this report 15 shown or into whose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Group financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the Group financial statements have
been property prepared in accordance with the Comparues Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our opimion the information given in the Report

of the Directars 15 consistent with the Group financial statements The information given in the Report of the Directors includes that specific information
presented in the Chairman's Staternent, Chief Executive’s Review and Financial Review that is cross referred from the Business Review section of the Report
of the Directors

In additzon we report to you 1f, in our opinion, we have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for our audt, or if informatien specified
by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transacticns 1s not disclosed

We read other information contaned in the Annual Report and consider whether it 15 consistent with the audited Group financial statements The other
information comprises the Highlights, the Chairman’s Statement, the Chief Executive’s Review, the Financial Review, the Report of the Directors including
the Statement of Directors Responsibilities, and the Five Year Record We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the Group financial statements Our responsibilities do not extand ta any other information

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the Group financial statements It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgernents made by the Directors in the preparation of the Group financial statements, and of whether the accounting pohcies
are appropriate to the Group s arcumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Group financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fravd or other
iregulanty or error In farming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the Group financial statements

OPINION

I our opinion

- the Group financial statements give a true and farr view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the state of the Group s affairs
as at 31 Janvary 2008 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended,

- the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and

- the information given in the Report of the Directors 1s consistent with the group financial statements

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

East Midlands, UK
11 June 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended 31 January 2008

2008 2007

Note £000 £000

Revenue s 62,448 54369
Profit from operations - before exceptional items 46 3,961 2,481

- exceptional items 5 - 1,276

Operating profit 5 3,961 3,757
Net defined benefit pension incomef{charge) 7 119 (99)
Net finance costs 8 (906} {898}
Amortisation of 1ssue costs 8 (75) {66)
(862) (1,063)

Profit before taxation 3,099 2,694

Deferred tax - exceptional 1 5101 -
Current 1axaton 1 (29) (58)
Total tax credit/f{charge) 11 5,072 {58}

Profit for the year 25 8,171 2,636

Earmings per share - Basic and diluted

1449p  467p

The notes on pages 19 to 48 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of
Recognised Income and Expense

Year ended 31 January 2008

2008 2007

MNote £000 £000

Actuanal losses on scheme assets 22 (1.364) {1310)
Changes mn actuarial mortality assumptions 2 (2,868} -
Other actuanial gains on scheme labilities 22 4,932 1,284
Currency translation differences 27 17
Cash flow hedges (110) -
Reduction in deferred tax relating to pensian lability due to rate reduction (110) -
{Reduction)frecogmuion of deferred tax asset relating to pension scheme lability (573) 1,637
Net {expense)/income recognised directly in equity (66) 1554
Profit for the year 8,171 2,636
Total recognised income for the year 8,105 4,230

The notes on pages 19 to 48 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

At 31 January 2008

2007
2008 (restated)
Note £000 £000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 13 5.833 5969
Property, plant and equipment 14 8,991 8,864
Deferred income tax assets 15 6,055 1,637
Trade and other recevables 16 253 265
21,132 16,735
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 16 13,475 11,251
Inventones 17 12,546 12,135
Cash and cash equivalents 18 2,017 2065
28,038 25451
Total assets 49,170 42,186
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 19 {155546)  (13,056)
Derwvative financial instruments 20 {110) -
Borrowings 21 (400} (556)
{16,056}  (13,652)
Net current assets 11,982 11,799
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 21 {8,906}  (10,073)
Retrement benefit obligation 22 {3,409} (5.518)
(12,315)  (15591)
Total habilities (28,371)  (29.243)
Net assets 20,799 12,543
Equity
Share capital 24 590 550
Share premiurm account i 457 457
Foreign cuirency translation reserve 5 10 (17}
Retained earmings 25 (20,655) (28594)
Qther reserves 25 40,397 40507
Total equity 20,799 12,543
The notes on pages 19 to 48 foprm an integral part of the consolidated financal statements
) D Sach ANDix
Director Director
These accounts were approved by the Directors on 11 june 2008
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Year ended 31 january 2008

2008 2007
Note £000 £000
Cash flows from operating actiities
Cash generated from operations 27 4,623 3,219
Interest paid (956} (513)
Debt 1ssue costs (123} -
Interest recerved ) 20
Income tax paid (7) (50)
3,542 2,276
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of intangible fixed assets {365) (276)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,309} (1,168}
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 3 -
(1,671)  (1L,444)
Cash flows from financing activities
Purchase of treasury shares {612) -
Proceeds from borrowings 11,296 -
Repayment of borrowings (11,296) -
Met repayment of borrowings (1,315) (282)
(1,927) (282)
Net (decrease}/increase in cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts {56) 550
Cash, cash equivalents and bank averdrafts at beginning of year 2,065 1,528
Exchange movement on cash and bank overdrafts 8 {13)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at end of year 28 2,017 2,005

The notes on pages 19 to 48 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Unicn and International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee (IFRIC) interpretations and the Companies Act 1985 applicable to
companies reporting under IFRS The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
valuation of denvative financial instruments at fair value, and with the accounting policies set out below which have been consistently appled to all
penoads presented unless otherwise indicated

Note 31 shows the effect on the consolidated financial statements of the transition to International Financial Reporting Standards from 1 February 2006
In prepaning these financial statements the Group has applied the IFRS adopted by the European Union and the IFRIC interpretations where the effectve

date 15 relevant to the financial year commencing on 1 February 2007 or ending 31 January 2008 The Company has not applied the following
pronouncements for which adeption 1s not mandatory for the year ending 31 January 2008 or which have not yet been endorsed by the EU

IFRIC 11 ‘Group and treasury transactions’

IFRIC 12 ‘Service concession agreements’

IFRIC 13 ‘Customer loyalty programmes relating to IAS 18, Revenue’

IFRIC14 The himit on a defined benefit asset, minmum funding requirements and their interaction”
IFRS 8 ‘Operating segments’

IAS 23 (revised 2007) ‘Borrowing costs’

IFRS 3 Revised 'Business combinations’

IAS 27 Revised Consolidated and separate financial statements’

IFRS 2 Revised Share based payments (amendment - vesung condittons and cancellations)’

1AS32 and1AS1 ‘Amendment to 1AS 32 Financial nstruments Presentation and I1AS 1 Presentation

of financial staterments - Puttable financial nstruments and obligations ansing on hiquidation’

The preparation of financial statements in conformety with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates It also requires management 1o
exercise ts judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated finanal statements, are disclosed 1n note 3

The financial statements of the Company as an entity continue to be prepared under United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and are
presenited separately from the consolidated financial statements {pages 50 to 57}

First time adoption of IFRS

The rules for first tme adoption are set out in IFRS 1, First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards IFRS 1 states that a company
shauld establish its IFRS accounting polices for the year ending 31 Janvary 2008 and apply them retrospectively as a general principle In denving the
opening balance sheet at the date of transiuon However, retrospective application is prohibited in some areas, particularly where retrospective application
would require jJudgements by management about past conditions after the cutcome of a particular transaction 15 atready known 1FRS 1 does, however,
allow a number of exemptions from the application of certain IFRSs to assist companies with the transition process The Group has taken advantage of the
following key exemptions

- Goodwill and business combinations (IFRS 3} The Group has elected 1o take advantage of the exemption not to apply IFRS 3 retrospectively to business
combinations occurning pnor to the transition date to IFRS Goadwill ansing on such acquisitions has been frozen at ts UK GAAP carrying value at
31 January 2006, having been satisfactorily tested for impairment at that date Amortisation previously reported for the year ended 31 January 2007 1s
removed in the IFRS restated income statement The operating profit impact for the year ended 31 January 2007 15 a reduction in the amortisation
charge of £39,000 The previous carrying value of the merger reserve under UK GAAP has also been retained

> Property, plant and equipment Gn transiion the Group has continued to measure tangible fixed assets using the historic cost basis

< Cumulative translation differences The Group has elected to reset the foreign currency translation reserve to zero at the transition date
Any gans and losses on subsequent disposals of foreign operations will exclude translation differences ansing prior to the date of transiion

> Other avallable IFRS 1 exemptions on first ime adoption of IFRS have not been taken as they are not applicable to the arcumstances of the Group

The Group has applied the following mandatory exceptions

- Hedge accounting denvative financial nstruments existing at the date of transition have not been retrospectively designated as hedging instruments
> Estimates at the date of transiton 1o IFRS were consistent with estimates made for the same date under previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect
any differences in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial information incorporates the financial statements of the Company and all iis subsidsary undertakings made up to 31 January
each year Subsidiaries are entities where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting nghts The existence and effect of potential voting nights that are currently exerasable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another entity

The results of subsidianes acguired or disposed of during the year are induded in the consolidated income statement from the effective date on which
control 15 transferred to or from the Group, as appropriate
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
Where necessary, adstments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries ta brng accounting policies used into line with those used by the Graup

The acquisiion of subsidianes 1s accounted for using the purchase method The cost of the acquisition 15 measured as the aggregate of the fair values, at
the date of exchange, of the assets giver, habilities incurred or assumed, equity instruments issued by the Group, 1n exchange for control of the acquirer
The identifizble assets habilities and contingent hiabilities assumed in a business combination are measured nitially at their fair values at the acquisit:on
date, except for nan-current assets (or disposal groups) that zre classified as held for sale in accardance with IFRS 5 Non Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations, which are recognised and measured at fair value less cosis to sell

Goodwill ansing on acquisition 1s recogmised as an asset and initially measured at cast, being the excess of the fair value of the consideration for the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, habilives and contingent liabilities recognised if, after
reassessmant, the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquirer's dentifiable assets, habilities and contingent habilities exceads the cost of the
business combination, the excess 1s recognised iImmed ately in the income statement

Allinter-company transactions and balances are eiminated on consolidation Profits and losses resulong from inter-company transactions that are
recognised in assets, such as inventory, are elminated in full Unrealised losses are also elininated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred

Foreign currencies
For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position are expressed in sterling, which 13 the functional currency
of the Company, and the prasentation currency for the consolidated financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies, which are those other than the functional currency of an entity, are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the
transaction Monetary assets and habihities denorinated in foreign currency are translated at the balance sheet date All unhedgad exchange differences
are recognused in the mcome statement for the penod and classified as other operating charges

The assets and habilities of the Group’s overseas subsidiaries on consolidation are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date The
incorne and expenses are translated at the weighited average rate dunng the penod Differences on translation are recogrised as a separate equity reserve
On disposal of an overseas subsidiary, the cumulative exchange differences for that subsiciary are recognised in the iIncome statement as part of the profit
or loss on disposal

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwall arising on acquisition 15 iitially measured at cost, being the excess of the fair value of the consideration for the acquisition over the Group's
interest in the net farr value of the acquired entity s identrfiable assets and liabilities at the date of acquisiion Goodwill is not amortised, but reviewed for
impairment annually, any impairment 1s recogrised immediately in the income statement and 1s not subsequently reversed Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units for the purpose of impairment testing The aliocation 1s made to those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combsnation in which the goodwill arose

On disposal of a subsidiary or cash generating urit the attnbutable amount of goodwill s included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal

Archive

The Arthur Sandersen and William Marns archive compnises of a hiszaric record of umique designs that are used to generate a significant royalty income
in the business The archive is valued at histonc cost The Directors believe that the archive has an indefinite useful life and is therefore not subject to
amortisation The carrying value of this asset will be reviewed annually and provision made for any impairment in the carrying value if required

Software assets
Acguired computer software licences are caprtalised at the cost incurred to bring the asset into use The costs are amcrtised to therr estimated residual
value over their estimated useful ife

Collection design
Research expanditure Is recognised as an expense as incurred Costs incurred on development projacts relating to the design of new collections are
recogrised as intangible assets when the following criteria are fulfilled

> ltistechnically feasible to complate the new collection so that 1s will be available for use ar sale

- Management intends to complete the new collection and use 1t or self it

- There 15 an ability to use or sell the new collection

- ltcan be demonstrated how the new collection will generate probable future economic benefits

- Adequate techmcal, financial and other rescurces to complete the development and to use or sell the new collection are avalable
= The expenditure attributable to the new collection during its development can be reliably measured
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Any costs relating ta design of new collections that do nat meet these critena are recogrised as an expense as incurred Any such costs recognised as an
expense In previous perods are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent penad Capitalised collection design costs are recognised as intangible assets
and are amortised to their estmated residual value at 25% on a straight lire basis over the life of the asset, and are tested for impairment if any impairment
trigger events are identified 1n accordance with1AS 36

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised imparment loss Histarical cost comprses the
purchase price and costs directly incurred in bnnging the asset into use The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed annually and adjusted (f
appropriate, at each balance sheet date

Depreciation 1s charged on a straight-line basis on the onginal costs (excluding freehold land) after deduction of any estimated residual value The principal
annual rates are

Freehold buiidings 2%

Leasehold improvements Over the length of the lease
Plant, equipment and vehicles  Between 5% and 33%
Computer assets 33%

Impairment of non financial assets

Intangible assets with finite useful fives and property, plant and equipment are tested for impairments if events or changes in aircumstances (assessed at
each reporting date) indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable When an imparrment test s conducted, the recoverable amount 1s assessad
by reference 1o the higher of the value In use (net present value of expected future cash flows of the relevant cash generating unit) or the fair value less cost
tosell

Goodwill and other Intangible fixed assets with an indefinite useful ife are tested for impairment at least annually

If a cash generating urit1s impaired, provision 1s made to reduce the carrying amount of the related assets to ther estimated recoverable amount
Impairment losses are allocated firstly against goodwill, and secondly on a pro rata basis agamst intangible and other assets

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffer impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date

Inventories

Inventornes are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost comprises direct materials, on a first-in, first-out basis, and direct labour, plus
attributable production overheads based on a normal level of activity Net reahsable value 1s based on estimated selling prices less antcipated costs of
disposal Provision s made for any slow moving and ebsolete nventory

Marketing maternials

Change in accounting policy

Marketing materials consist of patterning books and other marketing assets, they are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost comprises
direct matenals plus costs of production Net realisable value s based on estimated recoveries less anticipated costs of disposal Animpairment allowance
15 made for any slow moving and cbsolete marketing materials The Group's policy 1s to classify marketing matenals on the balance sheet within trade
and other receivables, which 1s a change in policy since July 2007 and which has resulted in a presentational restatement of the comparative financial
information at 31 January 2007 amounting to £1,265,000 Previously marketing matenals were included in inventory

Financial assets and Liabilities

Measurement basis

Financial assets and liabilities are recogrised on the date on which the Group becomes a party te the contractual provisions of the instrument gwing rise to
the asset or hability Financial assets and habilities are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs Any impairment of a financia) asset 1s charged
to the consolidated income statement when incurred Financial assets are derecognised when the Group’s nghts te cash inflows from the asset expire
financial habtlities are derecogrised when the contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire

Non-denvative financial assets are classified according to the purpose for which the asset was acquired The Group's financial assets are classified as either

> Trade and other recevables’ - these are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
They anse when the Group provides goods directly to a debtor, or advances in money, with nointention of trading the loan or recevable Subsequent to
initial recogmition loans and recervables are ncluded in the balance sheet at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any amounts written
off to reflect umpairment, with changes in carrying amount recogrised in the consolidated incorne staternent within administrative expenses

- 'Cash and cash equivalents’ - these comprise deposits with an onginal matunty of three months or less with banks and financial institutions, bank
balances, bank overdrafts and cash in hand
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
A provision for impairment of trade and other recevables (s established when there 15 objective evidence that the Group will not be able to coliect alt
amounts due according to the onginal terms of the receivables Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are considerad indicators that the trade recervable may be impaired The
amount of the provision 1s the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the net present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
onginal effective interest rate The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced through the use of provision account, and the amount of the loss 1s recogrised
in the iIncome statement within administrative expenses When a trade receivable 1s uncollectable, it 15 wrtten off against the provision account for trade
receivables Subsequent recoveries of amaunts previously written off are credited against adiministrative expenses in the income statement

The Group’s non-denvative inancial habilities are classiied as *Other liabilities” "Other liabilities’ are finanaal liabiities with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market They arise when the Group recewes goods or services directly from a creditor or supplier, ar barrows money, with
no intention of trading the liability This category includes

= 'Trade and other payables - these are typically non-interest beanng and following initial recognition are included in the balance sheet at amortised cost

- 'Bank loans and overdrafts’ - these are initially recorded at fair value based on proceeds received net of issue costs Finance charges are accounted for on
an accruals basis and charged to the Consolidated Income Statement using the effective interest rate method

- 'Borrowings’ - these are recordad initially at the fair value, net of direct 1ssue costs, and are subsequently stated at amortised cost Finance charges
including presniums payable on settlement, or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis in the income statement, using
the effective interest method, and are included within the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the penod in
which they arise

The Group does not have any non-denvative financial assets or habilities classified as ‘at fair value through profit and loss’

Derwvative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Measurement hasis

The Group s activities expose 1t 1o the financiat nsks of changes in exchange rates, and the Group uses forward exchange rate contracts to manage these
exposures The use of dervative finanaial instruments 1s governed by the Group s policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written
principles on the use of denvative inancial Instruments

The Group documerits at the inception of the transaction, the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items The Group also documents
its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an angoing bas:s, of whether the dervatives that are used in hedging transactions are highty effective

in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedge items The effective portion of changes in the fair value of denvatives that are desigrated

and quahfy as cash flow hedges 1s racognised in equity The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion 15 recognised immediately in the iIncome
staterment within ‘other gains/{losses) - net” Amounts accumulated in equity are released to the Income staternent when the hedged item affects

the income statement

Derivatives that do not gualify for hedge accounting under IAS 39 are classified as financial assets or liabilities at fair value through the profit or loss” They
are initially recognised at fair value, with fair value being remeasured at each reporting date The fair value of the derivative s based on market price of
comparable nstruments at the balance sheet date Changes in far value are included i the Consolidated Income Staternent within finance costs

The Group has no embedded derwvatives that are not closely related to the host instrument

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent only liquid assets with an onginal matunity of 90 days or less Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks and bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts that cannot be offset against other cash balances are shown within borrowings in corrent
habilities cn the balance sheet

For the purpases of the Cash Flow Statement it is the Group's policy te classify interest income and expense, and cther finance costs within ‘cash flows
from operatng activities’

Provisions

Prowisions are racognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it 1s probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best esumate of the expenditure required to settie the obligation at the balance sheet date, and are
discounted 1o present value where the effect 1s considered maternial

Leases
Leases are classihed as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group All other leases
are classified as operating leases

Assets used by the Group which have been funded through finance leases are capitalised in property, plant and equipment and the resulting lease
obhgations are included in habilities The assets are depreciated over their useful lives and the interest element of the rental obligations 15 charged
to the iIncome statement over the period of the lease, and represents a constant proportion of the balance of capital repayments outstanding

Operating lease rentals are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease Rent free penods receivable on entering
an operating lease are released on a straight-line basis ever the term of the lease
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Employee benefits
Pension obligations
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schermes are charged as an expense as they fall due

For defined benefit retirement schemes, the funding of benefits 1s determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with full actuanal valuations being
carned out triennially

Actuanal gains and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they occur They are recognised outside the income statement and prasented in the
Statement of Recognised Income and Expense

Past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and otherwise are amortised on a straight-hne basis over
the average period until the berefits become vested

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for
unrecegnised service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of the scheme assets Any asset resulting from this calculation s limited to past service cost,
plus present value of available refunds and reductions in future contnbutions to the plan

The defined benefit obligation 1s calculated annually by qualified independent actuanes using the projected urit credit methaod

Service costs, expected returns on plan assets, and interest on pension scheme Yiabilities are classified within ‘Net Pension Costs’ on the Consolidated
Income Statement

Employee benefits

Share based payments under Long Term Incentive Plans (LTIP)

In accordance with the transitional provisions, IFRS 2 has been applied to all grants of equity instruments after 7 November 2002 that had not vested
as of 1)January 2005

The Group 1s5ues equity-settied share-based payments to certain employees which must be measured at fair value and recognised as an expense in the
income statement with a corresponding mncrease in equity The fair values of these payments are measured at the dates of grant, taking inte account the
terms and conditions upen which the awards are granted The fair value 1s recogmised over the period during which employees become conditronally
entitied to the awards, subject 1o the Group’s estimate of the number of awards which will lapse, either due to employees lzaving the Group prior to vesting
or due to non-market based performance conditions not baing met The total amount recagrised in the income statement as an expense 1s adjusted to
reflect the actual number of awards that vest

Short-term bonus plans
The Group recognises a habiity and an expense for bonuses where contractually obliged or where there 1s a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity Costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of new ardinary shares are shown in equity as adeduction net of tax
from the proceeds

Treasury shares

Consideration pard including any directly attrbutable incremental costs (net of income taxes) on the purchase of the Company’s equity share capital
(treasury shares) 1s deducted from equity attributakble te the Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued Where such shares are
subsequently reissued any consideration received, net of any directly attnbutable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects 1s
included in equity attributable to the Company's equity shareholders

Revenue
The Group revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration recewved or recevable and represents amounts recoverable by the Group for goods
and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales related taxes Revenue comprises

-» Sale of goods - sales of goads are recognised when the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership, which
15 usually at the point of delivery of the goods

- Royalty revenue - royalties are received from licence holders under the terms of various agreements, and are recognised on an accruals basis
in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreement

Exceptronal items
Iterns that are both matenal and whaose nature 1s sufficient to warrant separate disclosure and identification within the financial statements are referred
to as 'Exceptional ltems’ and disclosed within their relevant income statement category

Taxation including deferred tax
The tax expense represenits the sum of the current tax and deferred 1ax charges or credits

23

WALKER GREENBANK PLC
ANNUAL REPORT

AND ACCOUNTS 2008



Notes to the Consolidated Accounts continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
Current tax 15 based on the taxable profit for the year Taxable profits differs from the net profit as reported in the iIncome statement because 1t excludes
rtems of Income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and 1t further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Group's
lrability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 15 the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and hiabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet labiity method
Deferred tax liabiliies are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recogrised to the extent that it 15 probable
that taxable profits will be avallable against which deductible temporary differences can be utiised Such assets and habilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference anses from goodwiil or from the imitial recagnition {other than 1n a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that effects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit

IAS 12 Income taxes requires that the measurement of deferred tax should have regard to the tax consequences that would follow from the manner of
expected recovery or settlement at the balance sheet date of the carrying amount of its assets and habilities In calculating its deferred tax liability the
Group's palicy 1s to regard the depreciable amount of the carrying value of its property, plant and equipment to be recovered through continuing use in
the business, unless included within assets held for resale, where the policy 15 to regard the carrying amount as being recoverable through sale

Deferred tax hab:lities are recognised for taxable temporary differences anising on investments in subsidianes except where the Group 15 able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amaunt of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficent
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penod when the hablity 1s settled or the assetis realised Deferred tax s charged
or crecited in the Income Statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with
In equity

Segmental reporting
Walker Greenbank is a designer, manufacturer and distributor of furmishings, fabnics and wallpaper The Group predominantly manages its operations as
two business segments which are the brands and manufacturing

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different to
those of other business segments A geographical segment 1s engaged in providing products and services within a particular economic environment that
15 subject to nsks and returns which are different from those of segments operating in other economic envirenments

Interest received
Interest income 1s accrued on a time basis, by reference 1o the prinaipal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable

2 FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENT
The Group s activities expose It to a variety of inancial nsks market nsk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate nsk, cash flow interest rate risk and
price risk), credit nsk and iquidity nisk The Group's overall nisk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minirmuse potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance The Group uses denvative finanaial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures

Risk management 1s carned cut by a central treasury department (Group treasury) under policies approved by the Board of Directors Group treasury
identifies, evaluates and hedges financial nisks in close co-operation with the Group's operating units

Foreign exchange nsk

The Group operates internationally and 1s exposed to foreign exchange nsk ansing from vanous currency exposures, pnmarily with respect to the US dollar
and the euro Foreign exchange nsk anses when future commeraal transactions or recogrised assets or abilities are denominated in a currency that 1s not
the entity’s functional currency

The Group's pelicy 1s, where possible, to allow the Group entities to settle labilities in their functional currency with the cash generated from ther
operations in that currency Where the Group entities have labilities denorminated in a currency other than therr functional currency (and have insufficent
reserves of that currency to settle them) cash already denominated in that currency will, where possible, be transferrad from elsewhere in the Group

To manage the foreign exchange risk anising on future transactions, 1t 1s the Group's policy to enter :nto forward currency contracts to hedge the exposure

For the year ended 31 January 2008, the average sterling to US dailar translation rate applied by the Group was £1 US$ 197 If the rate had been
£1 US$ 187 lower with all other variables held constant, profit before tax would have been higher by £150,000 If the rate had been £1 US$2 07
higher with all other variables held constant, profit before tax would have been lower by £135,000
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For the year ended 31 January 2008, the average sterling to euro translation rate applied by the Group was £1 euro 1 45 If the rate had been £1 euro 135
lower with all other variables held constant, profit before tax would have been lower by £175,000 If the rate had been £1 euro 155 higher with all other
vanables held constant profit before tax would have been higher by £152,000

The sensitivity of movements in other currencies 1s not considered matenal 1o the performance of the Group

Interest rate risk
As the Group has no sigrificant interest beanng assets its revenue and cash generated from operations are substantially independent of changes in market
Interest rates

The Group's interest rate nsk anses from long-term borrowings Borrowings issued at vanable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate nisk

The Group's borrowings at vanable rate are denominated in UK pounds The Group regularly analyses its interest rate exposure calculating the impact on
profit and loss of a defined interest rate shift Based on the calculations the Board consider refinancing, renewal of existing positions, alternative financing
and hedging

During 2007 the Group entered into a new financing contract with Barclays Bank PLC, variable interest rates were negouated on all the loans The board
continues to monitor the interest rates monthly

If for the year ended 31 January 2008, the benchmark interest rate levels had been 0 5% higherflower thar actual expenience, with all other vanables
held constant, the profit before tax of the Group would have been lower/higher by £60,000 due to the change in interest rate expense on vanable
rate borrowings

Credit nsk
Credit risk arises from the Group's trade receivables, cash held with banks, and denvative financial instrurments 1t 1s the nsk that the counterparty fails to
discharge 1ts obligation i respect of the instrument

The Group does not have any significant credit nsk exposure to any single company or group of companies, as the nature of the Group’s operations mean
that trade recevables consist of a large number of custorners spread across diverse industries and geographical areas

Prior to accepting new customers an iIndependent credit chack 15 obtained Based cn this informanion individual credit imits and payment terms are
established and where appropriate credit guarantee insurance cover 1s obtained [f no iIndependent credit ratings are available, customers are asked
to pay on a proforma basis until creditworthiness can be established The utihsation of credit imits 1s reqularly monizored Credit imits may only

be exceeded with the authonsation from key management, this is dependent on the amount expected to exceed the imit and the Group's trading
history wath that customer

There 1s no difference between the carrying amount and the maximum credit risk exposure

Liquidity nisk
Liguidity risk arises from the Group's management of working capital and the finance charges and principal repayments on its debt instruments
It 15 the nsk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its inancial obligations as they fall due

Duning the year the Group negotiated a new loan facility with Barclays Bank PLC A significant element of the facility 15 linked to working capital,
which allows the Group to manage its cash more effectively dunng the seasonal fluctuations in working capital associated with the industry

Management monitors relling forecasts of the Group’s cash and loan facility on a monthly basis The Group ensures that it has adequate facilities available
10 cover both its short- and medium-term commitments In addition, the Group’s liquidity management policy 15 to project cash flows in major currencies
and consider the level of iquid assets necessary 1o meet these

Capital risk management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are

= To safeguard the entities ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
- To provide an adequate return for shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with the tevel of nisk

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportton to nisk The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to 1t in ight of changes in
ecenomic conditions and the nsk charactenstics of the underlying assets In order to mamtain or adjust the capnal structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, 1ssue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the average debt to adjusted capital ratio The ratio is calculated as average net debt/adjusted capital
Average net debt 1s calculated as the total debt less cash and cash equivalents duning the year Adjusted capital comprises all compenents of equity
{1e share capital, share premium, retained earnings, and other reserves) other than amounts recogrised in equity relating to cash flow hedges and
forward currency contracts
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts continued

2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED
During the year to 31 January 2008, the Group s strategy, which was unchanged from the previous year, was to reduce the average geanng ratio
The average gearing ratios for 2008 and 2007 were as follows

31janvary  31janvary

2008 2007
Year ended £000D £000
Average debt less cash and cash equivalents 10,777 11,055
Total equity 20,799 12943
Less amounts recogrised in equity relating to currency contracts (10} 17
Adjusted caprtal 20,789 12,960
Average debt to adjusted capital ratio 52% 85%

The Group considers the average debt to adjusted equity ratic to be too high currently, and will continue te reduce debt and the pensien deficit by cash
generated from operations until the ratio 1s at a level considered appropnate

The gearing at the year end 15 lower than the average gearing as the leve! of trade debtors is lower than the average due to the seasonal nature of trading
in the months of December and Janvary

Fair value estmation
The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts 1s determined using quoted forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade recervables and payables and cash and cash equivalents are assumed to approximate thewr fair values

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning future events The resulting accounting estimates will seldom preaisely equal the related actual
results The Group apples its best endeavours in setting accounting esumates, and uses historical expertence and other factors, including input from
experienced and specialist management Estimates and assumptions are continually revaluated and the resulting accounting balances updated as new
information induding actual outcomes become apparent

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant nisk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liab:lities within the next
financial year are discussed below

a} Retirement benefit cbligations

The Group recognises i1s obligaticns to employee retirement benefits The quantification of these obligations is subject to significant estimates and
assumptions regarding hife expectancy, discount and inflation rates, wage and salary changes, and the rate of increase in pension payments In making
these assumptions the Group takes advice from a qualified actuary about which assumptions reflect the nature of the Group s obligations to employee
retirement benefits The assumptions are regularly reviewed to ensure their approprateness Details of the esuimates and assurmptions apphed, and carrying
amounts of retirement benefit obligaticns, are set out In note 22

b} impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill or its indefinite ife mtangible asset has suffered any impairment, in accerdance with its accountng policy
The recoverable amounts of cash generating units have been determined based on value in use (VIU) calculations These calculations require use of
estimates of future sales, margins, and other operating and administrative expenses, and of discount rates Further disclosures relating to the estimates
and assumptions applied, and carrying amounts of the non-financial assets, are set out In note 13

The Graup makes provision for impairment in the carrying amount of its inventories The nature of the Group's products are exposed to changes

in taste and attitudes from time to time, which can affect the demand for those products The Group has skilled and experienced management
who utlise historical sales information, and exercise their judgement, in making estimates about the extent of provisions necessary based on the
realisable valug of nventory and taking into account the estimated price and volume of future sales less the further ¢osts of sale Further disclosures
relating to the effect on the income statement of the estabhshment and reversal of such provisions are included in note 6, and the carrying amount
of inveniories 1s disclosed in note 17

¢) Deferred tax recognition

Following the completion of the Group's recovery programme and return to sustained profitability over recent years, the Group has considered it
appropriate 1o recogrise at the balance sheet date deferred tax assets resulting from historical trading losses The amount of deferred tax recogmised
is based on estimates of the timing and amount of future taxable profits of companies within the Group, which in turn relies upon estimates of future
operating profits and the occurrence, timing and tax treatment of sigrificant 1tems of income and expenditure including contnbutiens o pension
schemes and the vesting of share based payment awards Further disclosures relating to the effect on the income statement of the recognition of
deferred tax assets are mcluded in note 11, and the amount of deferred tax asset recogrised and other relevant disclosures are included in note 15
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
d) Share based payment awards
The Group has granted awards to Executive Directors and Sentor Managemen: which include vesting conditions relating to the future financial
performance of the Group as measured by Profit Before Tax (PBT) The number of awards that will ultimately vest, if any, vanes based on the PBT achieved
by the Group in the years ending 31 January 2009 and 2011 The fair value of the awards granted 1s charged against the income statement over the vesung
peniod, the amount of that charge 1s dependent upon the Group's estimates of how many awards will ultimately vest, which 1s inked directly to its estimates
regarcding future PBT achievenent Further disclosures relating to the effect on the financial statements of share awards 1s included note 24

4 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS
Walker Greenbank 1s a luxury interior furnishing groeup The Group manages its operations as two segments which are the brands and manufacturing
Segmental information 1s also presented in respect of the Group’s geographical segment This is the basis on which the Group prasents its resuits

a) Prnimary reporting format - business segment
Erminations and

Brands Manufactunng unallocated Total
Year ended 31 January 2008 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue - external 48,206 14,242 - 62,448
Revenue - internal 2,10 10,570 {12,671) -
Total revenue 50,307 24,812 (12,671 62,448
Operating profit 4,624 1,486 (2,149) 3,961
Financral costs - - {981) {981)
Net pension income - - 115 119
Profit before tax 4,624 1,486 (3 011) 3,099
Tax - - 5,072 5,072
Profit for the year 4,624 1,486 2,061 817

Elrmunations and

Brands Manufacturing vnallocated Total
Year ended 31 January 2008 £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets 28,506 15,406 5,258 49,170
Liabilites {13,463} (4,278) {10,630) (28,371)
Total net assets 15,043 11128 {5.372) 20,799
Capital expenditure - Intangible assets 273 9z - 365
Capnal expendnure - property, plant and equipment 821 611 - 1,432
Depreciation 615 703 3 1,321
Amortisation 480 21 - 501
Impairment losses - trade recevables 38 84 - 122
Reversal of prier penod impairment losses - trade receivables (23) (53} - (66)
Impairment losses - inventory 734 25 - 759
Reversal of prior period impairment losses - inventory - (15} - (15)
Share based payment charges - - 429 429

Elwminations and

Brands Manufacturing unallocated Total

Yearended 31 January 2007 £000 £000 £000 Ecoc
Revenue - external 41,217 13,152 - 54,369
Revenye - internal 1974 10,367 (12,341) -
Total revenue 43,191 23.519 (12,341) 54,369
Operating profit before exceptionals 2930 1334 {1.783) 2,481
Exceptional pension credit - - 1,276 1,276
Financial costs - - (964) (964)
Net pension costs - - 99 (9%
Profit before tax 2,930 1334 (1570} 2694
Tax - - (58) {58)
Profit for the year 2,930 1,334 (1,628) 2,636
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts continued

4 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS CONTINUED
Elrminations and

Brands Manufacturing unallocated Total
Year ended 31 January 2007 £000 £000 £EQOO £000
Assets 26,678 15,531 (23) 42,186
Liabilities (11,742) (4,168) (13,333) (29,243}
Total net assets 14,936 11,363 (13,356) 12,943
Capnal expenditure - Intangible assets 244 33 - 277
Capital expenditure - Property, plant and equipment 659 511 - 1,170
Depreciation 557 821 8 1,386
Amcrusation 455 1 - 456
Impatrment losses - trade receivables 33 24 - 57
Reversal of prior pericd impairment losses - trade receivables (2) (36) - (38)
Impairment losses - inventory 429 61 - 490
Reversal of prior period impairment losses - inventory - - - -
Share based payment charges - - 143 143

Inter-segment transactions are entered into under the normal commercial terms and conditions that would also be available to unrelated third parties
Segment assets consist primarily of goodwill, intangible assets, property plant and equipment, trade and other receivables, and inventones Segment
habilimes consist pramanly of trade and other payables Unallocated assets and liabilities consists primarily of cash, deferred tax assets, borrowings, dervative
financial instruments, and retirement benefit obligations

b) Secondary reporting format - geographical segments

2008 2007
Revenue by geographical location of customers £000 £000
United Kingdom 41,540 35,995
Continental Europe 9,132 7750
North America 8,113 7503
Rest of the World 3,663 3121

62,448 54369

2008 2007
Total assets by geographical segment £000 £0QQC
United Kingdom 48,132 41,293
Continental Europe 712 599
North America 326 294

49,170 42,186

2008 2007

Capital expenditure by geographical segment £000 £O00
United Kingdom 1,695 1,390
Continental Europe 15 3
North America 83 54
1,797 1,447
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5 ANALYSIS OF OPERATING PROFIT BY FUNCTION OF EXPENSE -

2008 2007

£000 £000
Revenue 62,448 54369
Cost of sales (25.362)  (23.006)
Gross profit 37,086 31363
Net operating expenses
Distribution costs (16,265)  (13,272)
Administrative expenses (16,464)  (15,565)
Other operating charges (396) {45)
Operating profit before exceptional items 3,961 2,481
Exceptional item
- Reduction of pension deficit following settlement of labilities - 1,276
Operating profit 3,961 3.757

Exceptional items

During the year ended 31 January 2007 the Group bought out the nght to non-statutory pensian increases from its active and deferred pensioners Thig
has resulted in a reduction of the |AS 19 hability m the balance sheet of £1,562,000 and a benefit of £1,276,000 in the Consolidated Income Statement
The benefit ansing frem the pension reduction exercise has been classified as administrative expenses

Analysis of revenue by category

2008 2007
£000 £000
Sale of goods 61,397 53.327
Royalty income 1,051 1,042

62,448 54.369

6 GROUP OPERATING PROFIT

2008 2007
£000 £000
Group operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting)
Auditors’ remuneration
> Fees payable to Company’s auditor for the audit of parent company and consolidated financial statements 50 50
> Audit of Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 75 75
- Other services 8 -
- Accounting advice with respect to IFRS 10 1
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 1,321 1,386
Amortisation of intangibles 501 456
Cost of inventories recognised as expense i cost of sales 17,553 14,152
Impairment of inventones 759 4580
Reversal of impairment of inventones (15) -
Impairment of trade recevables 122 57
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables {66) (38)
Net foreign exchange losses 396 45
Operating lease rentals
- Hire of motor vehicles and plant and machinery 399 377
- Land and buildings 1,205 1,236
(Profity/loss on disposal of fixed assets 3) 1
7 NET DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION COSTS
2008 2007
£000 £000
Expected return on pension scheme assets 2,71 2,408
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (2.371) (2327)
Service Costs (231) (180)
Net incomef{charge) 119 (95)
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts continued

8 NET AINANCE COSTS

2008 2007
£000 £000C
Interest expense
Interest payable on bank borrowings (87%) (501)
Interest and similar charges payable (36) a7
Total interest expense (911) (918)
Interest Income
Interest recervable on bank deposits 5 20
Net finance costs (9086) (898)
Amortsation of issue costs of bank loan (75) (66)
Total finance costs (981} (964)
9 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS
2008 2007
Salary Bonus Benefits Pension Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive Directors
John Sach 210 95 5 32 342 317
David Smallndge 150 68 1 15 234 218
Alan Dix 120 54 1 12 187 169
Non-executive Directors
fan Kirkham 62 - - - 62 58
Terry Stannard (appointed 19 September 2007) 9 - - - 9 -
Charles Gray (retired 12 February 2008) 22 - - - 22 22
573 217 7 59 856 784

Executive Directors have been granted awards under long-term incentive plans, no amounts are currently recevable by the Directors

In both years, retirement benefits were accruing to one Director under a defined benefit scheme, who 1s the highest paid Director Accrued annual
pensicn benefits at the year end were £20,210 (2007 £19,458) Benefits are accruing under defined contribution schemes for threa Directors
(2007 three Directors)

10 EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

2008 2007

£000 £000

Wages and salanes 15,858 15,012
Social secunty costs 1,581 1528
Other pension costs 658 603
Share based payment awards, including NIC thereon 429 143
Employee benefit expanse 18,526 17,286
2008 2007

The average monthly number of ermiployees (including Directors) duning the year Number Number
Sales, warehousing and administration 320 30C
Manufacturing 266 248
586 548

Other pension costs exclude the exceptional benefit ansing from the reduction in the pension reduction exercise of £nil (2007 £1,276,000)
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Compensation of key management personnel

2008 2007

£000 £000

Short-term employee benefits (including short-term incentives) 2,460 2,225
Post employment benefits (including pension costs) 119 116
2,579 2336

The Group regards its key management personnel to be its Directors and Semor Managernent having authonity and responsibility for planning, directing

and controlling the actvities of the Group, etther directly or indirectly

11 TAX
2008 2007
£00Q0 EQOQ
Overseas tax - current tax (29) (58)
Deferred tax 5,101 -
Tax creditficharge) for the year 5.072 (58)
2008 2007
£000 £000
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 3,099 2,694
Tax on profit on ordinary activities at standard rate 30% {2007 30%) (930) (808}
Non deductible expenditure (73) (146)
Utilisation of losses and origination and reversal of temporary differences duning the year 974 896
Recognition of deferred tax asset at end of year 5,101 -
Tax creditf{charge) for the year 5,072 {58}

Factors affecting current and future tax charges

The deferred tax credit of £5 1 million anses from the recogrition of deferred tax losses incurred by the Group in prior years and temporary differences

Because of the nature and size of this item 1t has been disclosed as an exceptional itermn

Areduction in the mainstream UK tax rate to 28% from 1 Apnl 2008 should result in a reduction in the Group's future effective tax rate Following the
recognition of deferred tax assets ansing from losses and temporary differences the future effective tax rate will also be influenced by changes in deferred

tax positions

The Group does not anticipate the UK corporation tax will becorne payable on profits within the immediate future due ta the availability of tax losses

of approximately £23 million

The reduction in the maimstrearn UK tax rate to 28% from 1 April 2008 has been taken into account in calculating the deferred tax balances, with the

impact of the change In tax rate recognised in the Income Statement or the Statement of Recognised Income and Fxpenses as appropriate

The Finance Bill 2008 announced the phasing out of the Industrial Bulding Allowances by 31 March 2011 However, this has not yet been substantively

enacted, therefore, no accounting entries have been made in respect of this potenitial change An additional deferred tax lability of approximately

£03 million 15 likely to be recogrised once this legislative change 1s substantively enacted

31

WALKER GREENBANK PLC

ANNUAL REPORT

AND ACCOUNTS 2008



Notes to the Consolidated Accounts continued

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earmings per share (EPS) 15 calculated by dviding the earrings attabutable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of shares

outstanding during the year, excluding those held in the employee share trust (note 24) and those held in treasury, which are treated as cancelled

2008 2007
Weighted Weighted
average average
number  Pershare number Per share
Earnings  of shares amount Earmings of shares amount
£000 {000s) pence £000 (000s) pence
Basicand diluted
Basic and diluted earnings per share 8171 56397 14 49 2,636 56,457 467
Adjusted
Farmings attnbutable to ordinary sharehciders 8171 56,397 14 49 2,636 56,457 467
Exceptional tems Deferred tax (5.101) - (9 05) - - -
Exceptional items Pension reduction exercise - - - (1,276) - (226)
Adjusted earnings per share 3,070 56,397 544 1,360 56,457 241

On 16 January 2008 Walker Greenbank PLC purchased 70C,000 ordinary shares of 1p each in the Company at 42 25p per ordinary share, and on 17 January
2008 Walker Greenbank PLC purchased 715,093 ordinary shares of 1p each in the Company at 43 Sp per ordinary share Following this transaction Walker
Greenbank’s 1ssued ordinary share capital with voting nghts consists of 59,006,162 ordinary shares of which 1,415,093 ordinary shares are held in treasury
and a further 2,549,146 ordinary shares are held by the Walker Greenbank PLC Employee Beneft Trust (EBT) Shares held in treasury or by the EBT are
treated as cancelled when calculating EPS At 31 January 2008 the market value of the treasury shares was £576,650

Adusted earmings per share have been calculated, as the Directors believe the exceptional items of deferred taxin the year ended 31 January 2008 and
the benefit of the pension reduction exercise in the year ended 31 January 2007, make it difficult to make a fair comparison between the basic earnings

per share
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13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Arthur
Sanderson
&William  Collection
Merms design Software
Goodwill Archive assets assets Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
1 February 2006 1,400 4,300 255 4,415 10,370
Additions - - 225 51 276
Disposals - - - - -
Currency movements - - - 1 1
31 January 2007 1,400 4300 480 4,467 10,647
Additions - - 209 156 365
Disposals - - - - -
Currency movements - - - - -
31 January 2008 1,400 4,300 689 4,623 11,012
Deprecation
1 February 2006 841 - 60 332 4,222
Charge - - 86 370 456
Disposals - - - - -
Currency movements - - - - -
31 janvary 2007 841 - 146 3,691 4678
Charge - - 105 396 501
Disposals - - - - -
Currency movements - - - - -
31)anuary 2008 841 - 251 4,087 5,179
Net book amount
31 January 2008 559 4,300 438 536 5,833
31 January 2007 559 4,300 334 776 £.969

The Arthur Sanderson and William Morris archive was purchased as part of the acquisiion of Arthur Sandersan & Sons on 29 August 2003 It comprises
an histonical record of unique designs that are used to generate royalty income 1n the business

Amortisation of £501,000 (2007 £456,000) 15 included in admunistrative costs

Impairment tests for Goodwill and Arthur Sanderson and William Mernis Archive
The carrying value of goodwill allocated o each segment at the year end 15 the brands £4,300,000 (2007 £4,300,000) and manufacturing £559,000
{2007 £559,000) The Archive s attributable to the brands

The Group tests goodwill and the Archwve for impairment annually or mora frequently if there are indications that they might be impaired There was
no impatrment charge recognised in the year (2007 none)

In assessing whether a wnte-down of goodwill 1s required to the carrying value of the related asset, the carrying value of the cash generative unit (CGU)
or group of CGUs 1s compared with 1ts recoverable amount The recoverable amount for each CGU and collectively for groups of CGUs that make up the
segments of the Group s business have been based on the value in use (VIU)

The Group estimates the VIU using a discounted cash flow model (DCF), which adjusts the cash flows for nsks associated with the assets, and are
discounted using a pre-tax rate of 8 48% (2007 75%) The discount rate used is the same across all segments

The Group has used formally approved budgets for the first year of its VIU calculation, with extrapolation beyond the first year using a prudent assumption
of no growth for future years The cash flows used in the calculation of the VIU are derived from past experience and are based on operating profit
forecasts, which in turn rely upon assumptions refating to sales growth, margins and operating and adrministrative expenses The cash flows have not
ncluded the benefits ansing from any future asset enhancerment expenditure, as this 15 not permitted by IAS 36 The VIU calculations therefore exclude
significant benefits anticipated from future caprtal expenditure The grewth rates included within the assumptions supporting the VIU caleufations do

nat therefore represent the Group s anticipated total forecast growth, but rather from growth denving frem capital expenditure completed at the balance
sheet date
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts continued

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS CONTINUED

The recoverable amount of the Archive Intangible asset 15 estmated based on VIU, and comprises estimated future cash flows from royalty income relating
to the Archive A discount rate of 8 48% 15 applied

The Group doas not consider there to be reasonably probable changes to the key assumptions that would result inimpairment of either goodwill or the
Archive as at 31 January 2008

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant
equipment
Land and and  Computer
buldings vehicles assets Total
£000 £000 £QOO £OQOD
Cost
1 February 2006 6,281 13,862 2,023 22,166
Additions - 1,080 90 1,170
Disposals - {684) (1,020) (1,704
Currency mavements - (42) - {42}
31 January 2007 6,281 14,216 1,093 21,550
Additions 40 1171 221 1,432
Disposals (517) {534) 19 (479
Currency movements - 27 - 27
31 January 2008 5.404 14,880 1,295 21,579
Depreciation
1 February 2006 1,696 10,004 1,354 13,054
Charge 101 744 541 1,386
Disposals - (673) (1,020} {(1,693)
Currency movements - 20 - (21)
31 January 2007 1,797 10,054 875 12,726
Charge 103 1,042 176 1,321
Disposals (917) {534) 19)  (L470)
Currency movements - 11 - 11
31January 2008 983 10,573 1,032 12,588
Net book amount
31January 2008 4,421 4,307 263 8,991
31January 2007 4,484 4,162 218 8,864
Depreciation expense of £1,321,000 (2007 £1,386,000) has been charged in adrministrative expenses
2008 2007
The net book amount of land and buildings compnses £000 £Q00
Freehold land 450 450
Freehold buildings 3971 4,034
Net bock value 4,421 4,484

Land and bulldings are stated at histonical cost

The carrying value of assets providing secunty under the Barclays facility was land and buildings of £4,421,000 (2007 Burdale faciity property of
£4,484,000 and plant and equipment of £2,963,000)
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15 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS

A deferred tax asset of £6,055,000 (2007 £1,637.000) had been recogrised in respect of tax losses and other timing differences and £5,101,000 has been
credited to the Income statement duning the year, as follows

2008 2007

£000 £000

Taxable temporary differences on property, plant and equipment (533) -
Taxable temporary differences on ntangible assets (106) -
Tax losses 5,740 -
5,101 -

Pension scheme obligations 954 1637
6,055 1637

The movements in the deferred tax asset on pension scheme obligations are recognised in the Statement of Recognised Income and Expense

At the balance sheet date the Group has unused tax losses of £23 million {2007 £25 million) available for offset against future profits A deferrad asset
has been recognised in respect of £20 million (2007 £nil) of such losses as the Group balieves that realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profit s probable and can be readily accessed under existing tax tegislation No deferred tax has been recogrised on the remaining £3 million
(2007 £25 million) as these losses are not readily available for offset aganst the Group s future profits under existing tax legislation and therefore the
realisation of these losses 1s not considered probable The recegnition of deferred tax on losses will be assessed at each reporting date

Potential deferred tax assets at 31 January 2008 of £2,485,000 {2007 £2,485,000) relating to tax losses and deductibie temporary differences have not
been recognised, as it 1s not considered probable that recovery of the potential deferred tax asset will anse under existing tax legislation

2008 2007

£000 £000

Tax losses 893 6,482
Other deductible temporary differences 175 270
1,068 6,752

There are also capital tax losses at 31 January 2008 of £2,485,000 (2007 £2,485,000) but no deferred tax asset has been recogrised as it is not
considered probable that these losses will be utilised

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2007

2008 (restated)

Current £000 £000
Trade recevables 10,403 8,807
Less Provision for impairment of trade recevables (186) (232)
Net trade recevables 10,217 8,575
Other recervables 214 268
Marketing matenials 1,872 1,265
Prepayments 1,172 1,149

13,475 11,251

2008 2007
Non-current £000 £000
Other recervables 253 265

The value of trade recervables providing funding under the Bardlays facility was £7,621,000 (2007 £7597,000 under the Burdale facility)
Marketing matenals previously included within inventories have been reclassified as trade and other receivables

There 15 no material difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of the trade and other receivables
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts continued

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES CONTINUED
Credit quality of financial assets
(1) Neither past due norimpaired
Included in the Group's trade recevable balances are debtors with a carrying value of £7,058,000 (2007 £6,365,000) which are neither past due nor
impaired at the reporting date The nature of the Group's business means that it has a long-standing relationship with the majonity of its customers, who
either have no expenence of historical default or only temporary late payments with full recovery of balances due

For the Group's cash at bank, and the recevable leq of dervative finanaial instruments, the counterparty to the financial nstruments 15 a major UK bank,
and the Group does not consider there to be any significant credit sk from holding these financial assets

(n) Past due-notimpared

included in the Group's trade recervable balances are debtors with a carrying value of £2,930,000 (2007 £2,157,000) which are past due at the reporting
date for which the Group does not consider the recevable to be impaired as there has not bezn a significant dechine in credit quality and the Group beleves
that the amounts are still fully recoverable The table below shows the ageing analysis of the recevabtes

2008 2007

£000 £000

1-30 days past due 1,528 1,274
31-60 days past due 1,189 729
61-90 days past due 213 154
31+ days past due - -
2,930 2157

(m) Pastdue-impaired

As at 31 January 2008, trade receivables of £415,000 (2007 £285,000) were indmwidually deterrmined to be imparred and provided for The amount of the
provision was £186,000 (2007 £232,000} The main factors used to assess the impairment of trade recewvables is the age of the balance and arcumstances
of the individual customer It has been assessed that a proportion of the receivables is expected to be recovered The Directors believe that there 1s no
further allowance required in excess of the provision for impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other recevables are denominated in the following currencies

2008 2007
£000 £000
Stering 8,337 7,337
Dollars 393 125
Euros 1,826 1548
Other 128 38

10,684 9.098

The Group considers that any exposure to concentrations of credit risk will be impacted pnincipally by underlying economic conditions in the principal
geographical segments in which the Group operates As at the balance sheet date the carrying value of trade receivables by geographical segment was

2008 2007
£000 £000
United Kingdom 6,625 5728
Continental Europe 2,271 1,965
North Amenica 775 429
Rest of the World 546 453

10,217 8575

As part of the Group's credit sk management the Group has credit insurance on large overseas customers and also on large UK customers of the
manufactunng segment
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Provisions for impairment
Movements on the Group provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows

2008 2007

£000 £000
At 1 February (232) (258)
Provision for receivables impaired (122) {57)
Recewvables written off in the year as uncollectable 105 45
Unused amounts reversed 66 38
Exchange difference (3) -
AL 31 January (286) (232)

The creation and release of prowision for impaired trade receivables have been included within ‘administrative expenses’ in the income statement

17 INVENTORIES

2007
2008 (restated)

£000 £000

Raw materials 1,120 1,051
Work in progress 1,904 1,565
Finished goods 9,522 9,519

12,546 12,135

The cost of inventories recogrised as an expense and included 1n ‘cost of sales” amounted to £17,553,600 (2007 £14 152,000)

The Group reversed £15,000 (2007 £nil} of a previous inventory write down The amount reversed has been included in ‘cost of sales’

The value of iInventories providing security under the Barclays facility if it were to be fully drawn, was £3,000,000 (2007 Burdale facility £8,912,000)
Marketing matenals previously ncluded within inventanes have been reclassified as trade and other receivables amounting to £1,265,000

18 CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2008 2007
£000 £000
Cash at bank and 1n hand 2,017 2,065

There 15 a set off arrangement for bank accounts held with the UK cleaning bank, and accordingly the amounts stated above reprasent the net of accounts in
funds and in overdraft

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2008 2007

£000 £000
Trade payables 10,570 8,553
Corporation tax 65 43
Other taxes and socizl security 741 8438
Other creditors 439 547
Accruals 373 3,065

15,546 13,056

20 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2008 2007
£000 £000
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges (110) -

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The Group's US based subsidiary, Walker Greenbank Inc, sells products 1o local customers with sales invoiced in US dollars As the Group’s presentation
currency 1s sterling it 15 exposed to changes in the reported sterling value of these sales The Group considers that it 1s highly probable that future sales of
this nature will continue to arise over at least the next 12 months During the second half of the year Walker Greenbank PLC has entered into monthly
forward fereign exchange contracts up to January 2009, with a third party, to buy sterling and sell dollars The Group has designated these contracts as cash
flow hedges of the foreign currency nsk anising from the highly probable future forecast transactions As at the reporting date the fair value of the ferward
foreign contracts deferred in the hedging reserve relating to the exposure on these anticipated future transactions 15 £110,000 (2007 £nil} The amounts
deferred in equity will be released into the income statement in the penod or periods dunng which the hedged forecast transactions effect the income
statement which s expected 1o be within 12 months of the balance sheet date
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts continued

21 BORROWINGS

2008 2007
£000 £000
Non-current
Property loan 3,400 779
Plant and equipment loan - 38
Trade recevables loan 5,502 9,256
Stock loan 4 -

8,906 10,073

Current

Property loan 400 446

Plant and equipment loan - 150
400 556

Total borrowings 9,306 10,669

In july 2007, the Group agreed terms for new facilities from Barclays Bank PLC replacing the Burdale Financial Limited funding The faciiities comprise
avariable rate Term Loan secured on the Group s freehold property of £4 million which is being repaid on a 10 year profile, and Receivables and Inventory
Financing Agreements which provide three year variable rate floating loans secured on the eligible trade recaivables and eligible inventones at any pointin
tme The total Barclays loan facility 1s capped at £17 million, the utiisation of the facility at the year end was £9,306,000

Between July 2004 and July 2007 the Group had funding from Burdale Financial Limited The three year facility comprised of a vanable rate loan secured on
the Group s freehold property of £2 milhon being repaid on a five year profile and a vanable rate facihty capped at £18 5 millien that fluctuated depending
on the level of eligible trade recevables and eligible inventories at any pont in time In May 2005 the Group agreed an additional facility secured on
manufacturing plant and equipment of £655,000 which was being repaid on a five year profile The Burdale loan facility was capped at £18 5 mullion, the
unlisation of the facility at 31 January 2007 was £10,250,0C0

Under the new Barclays Bank PLC facilities, the Group are subject to various inancial covenants which apply to the term loan including interest cover and
debt service The receivables and inventory financing agreements require compliance with a number of operational covenants The Group was also subject
to similar covenants under the previcus Burdale Financial Limited funding facilities

Any non-compliance with covenants could, if not remedied or waived, constitute an event of default with respect to any such arrangements The Group
was In full comphance with its financial and operational covenants throughout each of the penads presented

The far value of current borrowings eguals their carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not significant The carrying amounts and farr value ot the
non-current borrowings are as follows

Carrying amount Fair valse
2008 2007 2008 2007
£000 £000 £000 £000
Property loan 3,400 779 3,400 779
Trade recewvables loan 5,502 9,256 5,584 9,288
Stock loan 4 - 4 -
Plant and equipment loan - 38 - 28

8,906 10,073 8,988 10,105

The fair valuas are based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on the borrowing rate of 70% (2007 7 4%)
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The table below analyses the Group s financial liabilities and net-settled denvative financal labilities into relevant matunty groupings based on the
remaining period to contractual maturity at the balance sheet date The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
The rmatunty profile of undiscounted cash flows on variable interest rate borrowings has assumed interest rates as at the balance sheet date

Between

Less than 2and Qver
lyear 1to2years 5 years 5 years
31 January 2008 £0C0 £000 £0Q0 £000
Borrowings 1,041 1,009 7,206 2,080
Derwvatve financial instruments 110 - - -
Trade and other payables 14,740 - - -
15,891 1,009 7206 2,080
Lessthan  Betweenl Between2 Over
1year to 2 years to § years § years
31 January 2007 £000 £QOC £000 £000
Borrowings 1,363 4,780 372 -
Trade and other payables 12,165 - - -
13,528 5,780 372 -

The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are denominated in the follewing currencies
2008 2007
£000 £000
Sterling 9,306 10,144
Euro - 525

9,306 10,669

22 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Defined contribution schemes

The Group contrbutas to the defined contnbuticn section of the Abaris Haldings Limited Penston Scheme and to a Group Personal Pension Plan which is
also a defined contribution scheme Contnbutions are charged to the income statement as incurred, and amounted to £437,000 (2007 £423 000) Active

members of the schernes are also able to make contnbutions

Defined benefit schemes

The Group aperates the following funded defined benefit pension schemes in the UK which offer pensions on retirement and death benefits to members the
Walker Greenbank Pension Plan, the Abaris Holdings Limited Pension Scheme and the WG Seruer Management Pension Scheme Pension benefits are related
to the members’ salary at retirement and their length of service The schemes are closed to new members and the future accrual of benefits The most recent
tnenmal funding valuation for the defined benefit schemes was Apnt 2006 An updated valuation for IAS 19 finanaal reporting purposes has been completed
atthe balance sheet date The Group's contributions to the schemes for the year beqinning 1 February 2008 are expected 1o be £1,250,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts continued

22 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED
The pnnaipal assumptions applied when valuing the defined benefit schemes were

2008 2007
Discount rate 610% 530%
Rate of salary increase 3 40% 320%
Rate of increase to LP pensicns in payment 3 40% 320%
Rate of increase to pensions (In excess of GMP } in deferment 3 40% 320%
Rate of inflation 3 40% 3 20%
Expected return on plan assets 700% 6 80%

Members are assumed to commute 25% of their pension (2007 25%)

The assumptions used in determining the overall expected return on assets of the scheme have been set with reference to yields available on government

bands and appropriate nsk margins for equities and other classes of assets

The mortalty assumpuions applied are based on the PAG2 year of birth with medium cohort tables (2007 PAS2 (2010/2020) tables) The mortality

assumptions imgly the expected future lifetime from age 65 as follows

2008 2007
MNon-pensioner male currently 45 231 199
Pensioner male currently 65 219 190
Non-pensioner female currently 45 259 228
Pensioner female currently 65 24 8 220
The amounts recorded in the balance sheet are determined as follows

2008 2007

£000 £000
Equities 22,512 20,306
Property 3,607 4,126
Fixed interest 12,653 13,078
Insured annurties 1,739 2,087
Cash and other 340 393
Fair value of plan assets 40,851 35990
Prasent value of funded defined benefit obligations (44,260)  (45,508)
Net liability in balance sheet (3.409)  (5518)
Reconailiation of epening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obhgation

2008 2007

£000 £000
Benefit obligation at beginning of year 45,508 47,222
Service cost 231 180
Interest cost 2,371 2327
Centnbutions by plan participants - -
Actuanal loss - change in mortality assumptions 2,868 -
Actuanal gain - other (4 932) (1,284)
Benefits paid (1,786) (1,375)
Past service cost - -
Curtailments and settlerments - {1,562)
Benefit obligation at end of year 44,260 45,508
Reconaliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets

2008 2007

£000 £000
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 39,990 35189
Expected return on plan assets 2,711 2,408
Actuanal loss (1,364) {1,310)
Contnbutions by employers 1,290 1,078
Contnibutions by plan participants - -
Benefits pad (1,786} {1,375)
Farr value of plan assets at end of year 40,851 39990

40
WALKER GREENBANK PLC
ANNUAL REFORT

AND ACCOUNTS 2008



The amounts recognised 1n the incame statement are

2008 2007

£000 £000
Current service cost 231 180
Interest on obligation 2,371 23277
Expected return on plan assets (2,721) {2,408)
Settlement and curtailments - (1562)
Net pension expense (119)  (1,463)
The actual return on assets over the pernod was £1,357,000 {2007 £1,098,000)
Actuanal gains and (losses) to be shown in Statement of Recogmised income and Expense

2008 2007

£Q00 £000
Actual return on scheme assets less than expected retumn {1.364) (1,310
Change in mortality assumptions (2,868) -
Other actuarial gains on scheme liabilities 4,932 1,284

700 (26)

Other actuanal gains on schemea habihities in the penod anse mainly from increases in the discount rate used in determining the present value of scheme
liabihities The cumulative amount of actuanal losses reported in the Statement of Recognised Income and Expense (including amounts reported in the
equivalent staterment prior to the adoption of IFRS) before deferred taxation was £14,351,000 (2007 £15,051,080)

History of schemes’ assets, obligations and experience adjustments

2008 2007 2006
£000 £000 £Q00
Present value of defined benefit cbligation 44,260 45508 47,222
Fair value of scheme’s assets 40,851 39,950 39,189
Deficit n the scherres (3,409) (5518) {8,033
Expenence adjustments ansing on scheme labilites 2,064 (1,284) #
Experiance adjustments ansing on scheme assets (1.364) (1.310)
# Information not readily available for penods pror to the date of transiion to IFRS
23 FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The accounting policies for inancial instruments have been applied to the line itams below
Derwvatrves
Loans and Assetsat used for
receivables fairvalue hedging Total
31 fanuary 2008 £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets as per balance sheet
Trade and other recevables 10,684 - - 10,684
Cash and cash equivalents 2017 - - 2,017
Total 12,701 - - 12,701
Cther  Derwvatives
Liabilities at financial used for
fair value labilities hedging Total
31 January 2008 EQOQ £000 £000 £000
Liablities as per balance sheet
Dervative financizl instruments - - 110 110
Borrowings - 9,306 - 9,306
Trade and other payables - 14,740 - 14,740
Total - 24,046 110 24,156
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts continued

23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY CONTINUED

Derivatives
Loans and Assets at used for
recevables far value hedging Total
31 Janvary 2007 £QOO £000 £000 £000
Assets as per balance sheet
Trade and other receivables 9,098 - - 9,098
Cash and cash equivalents 2,065 - - 2,065
Tota 11,163 - - 11,163
Other  Derwvatives
Liatilities at financial used for
fair value habilities hedging Total
31 january 2007 £000 £000 £000 EQCO
Liabilities as per balance sheet
Trade and other payables - 12,165 - 12,165
Borrowings - 10,669 - 10,669
Total - 22,834 - 22,834
24 SHARE CAPITAL
Number
Ordinary shares of 1p each of shares £
Authonised share capital
1 February 2007 and 31 January 2008 85,000,000 850,000
Allotted, called up and fully pad
1 February 2007 and 31 January 2008 59,006,162 590,062

All holdters of ordinary shares have the right to vote at general meetings of the Company and to distributions from dwdends or on winding vp of
the Company

The Wazlker Greenbank PLC Employee Benefit Trust ("the trust’) holds 2,549,146 shares (2007 2,549,146) with a cost of £601,202 {2007 £601,202) and
the market value at 31 January 2008 of £1,038,777 (2007 £1,242,709)

During the year Walker Greenbank PLC purchased 1,415,053 ordinary shares of 1 p each at prices ranging from 42 25 10 43 50p pear share and at a total cost
of £611,672 These shares represent 2 4% of the 1ssued shares, and are held in treasury The market value of these shares at 31 January 2008 was £576,650

The shares held by the trust and the treasury shares are held for the purpose of satisfying awards under long term incentive plans to Executive Directors and
Semor Management

Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)
The Group operates a Long Term Incentive Plan There have been two awards under this plan, in which Executive Directars and Senor Management of the
Group partcipate The LTIP has previcusly been approved by the shareholders at an Annual General Meeting

Awards under the scherme arg grantad in the form of nil-pnced share options, and are to be satisfied either using market-purchased shares or by the issuing
of new shares The awards vest in full or in part dependent on the satisfaction of speafied performance targets at the end of the vesting period applying
to each plan The number of awards that vest 1s dependent upan the Profit Before Tax (PBT) achieved for the relevant year As the awards carry a nil-value
exercise price, the grant date fair value corresponds to the share price of the Group on the grant date Detalls are set out below

Award One Award Two
Grant date of awards 25 July 2006 24 May 2007
Grant date rar value of award {pence per award) 2675 5300
Vesting date of awards 25 July 2009 24 May 2011
Maximum number of awards 2,543,000 1,415,093
Relevant year ending date for determination of PBT 31 January 2009 31 january 2011

The Rermuneraticn Committee has reviewed the targets for the awards and amended the targets from Earnings Per Share {EPS) to Profit Before Tax to
reflect the recognimion of the deferred tax asset durning the year, which will now lead to deferred tax charges in the Income Statement in future years, which
had not been anticipated in the oniginal £PS targets
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Movements in the number of awards outstanding, assuming maximum achievement of PBT targets, are as follows

2008 2007
£000 EQ0O
At 1February 2,549,000 -
Granted 1,415,093 2,549,000
Forferted - -
Exercised - -
Expired - -
At 31 January 3,964,093 2,545,000
Refer to note 10 for disclosure of the charge to the Consolidated [ncome Staternent ansing from share based payments
25 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Other reserves
Share
Share premum Retaned Capital Merger Hedge  Translation
capltal account earnings reserve reserve reserve resarve Total
£000 £000 £000 £00C £000 £QOO £000 £000
1 Fabruary 2006 590 457 (32953)  43.457 (2.950) - - 8.601
Actuanal losses on scherme assets - - (1,310 - - - - (1,310}
Other actvanal gains on scheme liabilities - - 1,284 - - - - 1,284
Deferred tax - - 1,637 - - - - 1637
Currency translation differences - - - - - - (17} (17}
Net incomef{expense) recognised directly in equity - - 1611 - - - 17 1594
Reserve for long-term incentive plan - - 112 - - - - 112
Profit for the year - - 2,636 - - - - 2,636
31 January 2007 590 457  (28594) 43,457 {2.950) - {17) 12943
Other reserves
Share
Share pramum Retained Capital Merger Hedge Translation
capital account earnings reserve reserve Reserve reserve Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1 February 2007 590 457 (28594)  43.457 (2950) - 7y 12843
Actuanal losses on scheme assets - - (1,364) - - - - (1364)
Changes in actuanal mortality assumptions - - (2,868) - - - - (2,868)
Other actuanial gams on scheme labihues - - 4,932 - - - - 4932
Deferred tax - - 683) - - - - {(683)
Currency translatian differences - - - - - - 7 27
Hedging reserve - - - - - (110) - (110)
Net income/(expense) recagnised directly in equity - - 17 - - (110) 27 (66)
Reserve for long-term incentive plan - - 363 - - - - 363
Purchase of treasury shares - - 612) - - - - {612)
Profit for the year - - 8171 - - - - 8171
31 January 2008 550 457 (20655) 43457 {2,950 (310} 10 20,799
Capital reserve represents £000
Share premium of companies acquired under merger accounting priniples 1,276
Capital reserve ansing on conschidation 293
Capital redemption reserve for deferred shares 1003
Capital redemption reserve for ‘B’ shares 40,885
43,457
26 DIVIDENDS
The Directors do not propose a final dividend :n respect of the year ended 31 January 2008 (2007 No dividend proposed)
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts continued

27 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

2008 2008 2007 2007
£Q00 £000 £000 £000
Operating profit 3961 3757
Depreciation 1,321 1,386
Amorusation 501 456
Charge for long-term incentwe plan 363 112
Exceptional pension credit - (1,276)
{Profitfloss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (3) 11
Changes in working capital
Increase in nventaries (410) {1.898)
Increase in trade and other receivables {2,212) (1,198)
Increase 1n trade and other payables 2,392 3,841
Pension cash contnbutions {1,290) {(1,078)
Settlernent of retirerent benefit obligation - (894)
662 (538)
Cash genesated from operating activities 4,623 3,219
28 ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT
Other
1 February non-cash Exchange 31 Janvary
2007 Cashflow changes  moverment 2008
£000 £Q00 £000 £000 £Q00
Cash at bank and in hand 2,065 (56) - 8 2,017
Borrowings due within one year (596} 196 - - (400)
Borrowings due after one year {10,073) 1,119 48 - {8,906)
(10,669) 1315 48 - (9,306)
Net debt (8,604) 1,259 48 8 (7.289)
Other non-cash changes are amortisation of issue costs relating to the loan finanting
29 COMMITMENTS
a) Capital commitments
Caprtal expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred is as follows
2008 2007
EC00 £000
Property, plant and equipment 203 37

b) Lease comnutments

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain office properties Land and building leases are negotiated for an average
of 16 years and sentals are fixed for an average of five years Qther leases are negotiated for an average term of three years and rentals are fixed for an

average of three years

Total commutments due under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

Land and Land and
buildings Other buildings Other
2008 2008 2007 2007
£EQQO £000 £0G0 £000
Within one year 1,151 287 1,232 327
Between one and five years 3161 359 3.820 420
Over five years 5,018 - 6,094 -
9,330 646 11,146 747

The Group expects to receve total sub-lease rental mcome of £109,000 (2007 £109,000) under the terms of sub-lease agreemenis entered into with

third parties

Other leases include hire of plant, machinery and motor vehides
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30 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

The principal Group operating companies that traded duning the year and are wholly owned, and which are includad in these consohdated financial
staterments are as follows

Abans Holdings Limited registered in England and Wales
Walker Greenbank Inc* incorporated in the USA

Arthur Sanderson & Sons inc* incorporated in the USA

Arthur Sanderson & Sons SARL* incorporated in France
Whittaker & Woods SRL incorporated i ltaly

Investments in Group companies are ordinary shares
* Shares held by subsidiary company

The principal activities of the Group are design, manufacture, marketing and distnibution of wallcoverings, furnishing fabrics and assocated products for
the consumer market

31 RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
Walker Greenbank PLC and its subsidianes {'the Group ) have previously prepared consolidated financial statements in accordance with UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP} From 1 February 2007 the Group was required to prepare its consohdated financial statements in accordance
with International Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards (collectively 'IFRS’) as adopted by the European Umion (EU) The
Group's date of transition to IFRS was determined, in accordance with IFRS 1, First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Statements, as at
1 February 2006 The effect of the transition was previcusly reported on 28 September 2007 and can be found on the Group's website There have been
no further transition adjustments identified since that date The notes below present and explain how the Group's financial performance and position
under IFRS differs from that reported under UK GAAP Restated information s presented for

> The Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 1 February 2006 (the transition date)
= The Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 January 2007

- The Consolidated Income Statement for the year ending 31 January 2007
= The Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ending 31 January 2007
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts continued

31 RESTATEMENT OF INANCIAL INFORMATION UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS CONTINUED

Reconciliation of Balance Sheet at 1 February 2006

Intangble  Intangible
assets - assets—  Short term  Long-term
computer  collection  employee  employee
LiK software design benefits benefits
GAAP IAS38 14538 1AS 19 1AS19 IFRS
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 4,859 1094 196 - - 6,149
Property, plant and equipment 10,205 (1,094) - - - $,111
Deferred incorme tax assets - - - - - -
Trade and other recervables 275 - - - - 275
15,33% - 196 - - 15,535
Current assets
Inventones 11,539 - (30 - - 11,509
Trade and other recevables 8,862 - (52 - - 8810
Cash and cash equivalents 1,530 - - - - 1,530
21931 - (82) - - 21849
Total assets 37270 - 114 - - 37.384
Current habilities
Bank overdrafts (2) - - - - ()
Borrowings (556) - - - - (596)
Trade and other payables (9,805) - - (58) - (9,863)
(10,403) - - (58) - {10.461)
Net current assets 11,528 - (82) (58) - 11,388
Non-current habilities
Borrowings (10,289) - - - - (10,289)
Retrement benefit obligation (7981 - - - (52) (8,033
(18,270) - - - (52) (18323
Total habilities {28,673) - - (58) (52) {28,783)
Net assets 8,597 - 114 (58) (52) 8,601
Equity
Share capital 590 - - - - 590
Share premum agcount 457 - - - - 457
Foreign currency translation - - - - - -
Retained earnings (32,957} - 114 (58) (52)  (32953)
QOther reserves 40,507 - - - - 40,507
Total equity 8,597 - 114 (58) (52) 8,601
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Reconcihation of Balance Sheet at 31 January 2007

Intangible Intangible
assets-  Intangible assets - Property  Short-term  Long-term
computer assets-  collection plantand  employee  employee Foreign
UK software goodwill design  equipment benefits benefits  exchange
GAAP 14538 14538 I1AS 38 1A5 16 IAS 15 14519 1AS 21 IFRS
£0Q0 £Q00 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £C00
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 4,820 775 39 33 - - - - 5,969
Property, plant and equipment 9,623 (775) - - 16 - - - 8,864
Deferred iIncome tax assets - - - - - - 1,637 - 1,637
Trade and other recervables 205 - - - - - - - 265
14,708 - 39 335 16 - 1,637 - 16,735
Current assets
Inventorias 13,476 - - (72) - - - - 13,404
Trade and other recevables 10,079 - - (97) - - - - 3,882
Cash and cash equivalents 2,065 - - - - - - - 2,065
25,620 - - (169) - - - - 25451
Total assets 40,328 - 39 166 16 - 1,637 - 42,186
Current habilities
Borrowings {596} - - - - - - - {596)
Trade and other payables {12,391) - - - - (65) - - (13.056)
{13,587) - - - - (65) - - {13.652)
Net current assets 12,033 - - {(169) - (65) - - 11,799
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings {10,073) - - - - - - - (10073)
Retirement benefit obligation (2,321) - - - - - (1,697) - (5,518)
(13,894) - - - - - (1,697) - {15.591)
Total habilities (27.481) - - - - (65) (1,697 - (28,243
Net assets 12,847 - 39 166 16 (€5) (60) - 12,943
Equity
Share capital 590 - - - - - - - 590
Share premium account 457 - - - - - - - 457
Foreign currency translation - - - - - - - a7 (17)
Retained earnings (28.707) - 39 166 16 (65) (60) 17 (28,594}
Other reserves 40,507 - - - - - - - 40,507
Total equity 12,847 - 39 166 16 {65} (60) - 12,943
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts continued

31 RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION UNDER iINTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS CONTINUED
Reconcihation of Income Statement for the year ended 31 January 2007

Intangible
Intangible assets— Property  Short-term  Long-term  Revenue-
assets-  collection plantand  employee  employee royalty
UK goodwill design  equipment benefts benefits income
GAAP 1AS 38 IAS 38 IAS16 IAS19 IAS 19 IA518 IFRS
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue 53,327 - - - - - 1042 54363
Profit from operations - before exceptional items 2,201 39 52 16 )} 180 - 2,481
Profit from operations - exceptional ttems 1,276 - - - - - - 1,276
Operating profit 3,477 39 52 1& {7} 180 - 3757
Finance income 81 - - - - (180) - (99}
Finance costs (898) - - - - - - {898)
Amortisation of 1ssue costs (66) ~ ~ - - - - (66)
883 - - - - {180) - {1,063)
Profit before taxation 2,554 39 52 16 (73 - - 2,654
Taxation (58) - - - - - - (58}
Profit for the year 2,536 39 52 16 7)) - - 2,636
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 4 49p 4 67p
Reconahiation of cash flows for the year ended 31 January 2007
Intangible  Intangible
assets — assets -
computer  collection
software design
UK GAAP 14538 14538 IFRS
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 2,955 - 224 3,219
Interest paid (913) - - (913
Interest recerved 20 - - 20
Income tax paid (50) - - (50)
2,052 - 224 2,276
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of intangible fixed assets - {(52) (224) (276)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {1,220) 52 - {1,168)
(1,220) . (224)  (L44d)
Cash flows from finanang activities
Decrease in borrowings (282 - - (282)
(282) - - (282)
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 550 - - 550
Cash cash equivalents and bank borrowings at beginning of year 1528 - - 1,528
Exchange losses on cash and bank overdrafts (13) - - (13}
Cash cash equivalents and bank borrowings at end of year 2,065 - - 2,085
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the members of Walker Greenbank PL.C

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Walker Greenbank PLC for the year ended 31 January 2008 which comprise the Company
Balance Sheet and the related notes These parent company financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out theren

We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of Walker Greenbank PLC for the year ended 31 January 2008

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Directors’ responsibiliies for preparing the Annual Report and the parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Our responsibility 1s to audit the parent company financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and requlatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body In
accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose We do not, In gwing this opimion, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or ta any other person to whom this report 1s shown or nto whose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent
n wntlng

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial staterments give a true and fair view and whether the parent company finanaal
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given
in the Report of the Durectors 15 consistent with the parent company inancial statements The information given in the Report of the Directors includes
that speaific information presented i the Charman's Statement, Chief Executive s Review and Financial Review that 15 cross referred from the Business
Review section of the Report of the Directors

In addition we report to you i, In our opinien, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information and
explanations we requere for our audtt, or f information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read other informaton contained in the Annual Repart and consider whether it 1s consistent with the audited parent company financial statements
The other information compnises the Highlights, the Chairman’s Statement, the Chief Executive’s Review, the Financial Review, the Report of the
Directors including the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, and the Five Year Record We consider the implications for our report if we become
aware of any apparent misstatements or matenial inconsistencies with the parent company financial statements Qur responsibilities do not extend to
any other information

BASIS OF AUDIT GPINION
We conducted our audit n accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the parent company financial statements It also includes an
assessment of the sgnificant estimates and judgements made by the Directors in the preparation of the parent company financial statements, and of
whether the accounting pelicies are appropnate to the Company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary m order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent company financial statements are free frorm material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or other irregulanty or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of informatien in the parent company
financizl statements

OPINION
In our opinion |
- the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice of the
state of the Company s affairs as at 31 January 2008, |
- the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Comparies Act 1985, and |
- the information given.n the Report of the Directors 15 consistent with the parent company financial statements

%ﬁ % c /
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
East Midlands, UK
11 June 2008
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Walker Greenbank PLC Company Accounts— UK GAAP

Company Balance Sheet

At 31 January 2008

2008 2007
Note EOOQ £000
Fixed assets 5 4,453 4,489
Investments 6 43,579 43,579
48,032 48,068
Current assets
Debtors 7 18,919 17175
Cash at bank and in hand _ "
18,919 17175
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 8  (5,060) {5,987
Net current assets 9,859 7188
Total assets fess current hiabiliies 57,891 55.256
Creditors amounts falling due after mare than one year 9 (3,400) (780)
Provisions 10 (74) -
Net assets 54,417 54,476
Capital and reserves
Share capital n 590 590
Share premium account 12 457 457
Retamed earnings 12 11,482 11,541
Other reserves 12 41,888 41,888
Total shareholders’ funds 54,417 54,476

The notes on pages 51 to 57 forman integral part of the Company financial statements

J D Sach AN Dix
Director Director

These accounts were approved by the Directors on 11 June 2008
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Notes to the Accounts

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting convention
The fAinancial statements are prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost conventien They have been prepared in accordance with
applicable accounting standards and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, with the Companies Act 1985, and with the accounting
policies set out below which have been consistently applied to all periods presented unless otherwise indicated

Profit and loss account
No profit and loss account 1s presented for Walker Greenbank PLC ('the Company’) as it has applied the exemption provided by Section 230 of the
Compantes Act 1885 A profit of £190,000 (2007 £11,284,000} has been dealt with in the accounts of the parent company

Consolidation
These financial statemenits present information relating to the entity Walker Greenbank PLC, and are not consolidated The consclidated finanaal
statements of the Group of which the Company 1s the parent are separately presented within this Annual Report and Accounts under IFRS

Fixed assets
Depredation 1s charged on tang ble fixed assets (excluding freehold land) on a straight-lne basis on the onginal cost after deduction of any estimated
residual value The principal annual rates are

Freehold buildings 2%

Short leasehold improvements Over the length of the lease
Plant, equipment and vehicles Between 5% and 33%
Computer assets Betwean 12 5% and 33%

Land and buildings are stated at cost less any prowision for impairment

impairment of fixed assets and investments

Fixed assets and investments are subject to review for impairment in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard No 11 Where imparrment triggers are '
identified the recoverable amount of the relevant asset, or graup of assets within an iIncome generating unit 1s determined, being the higher of valye i use |
and net realisable value If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount an impairment loss is calculated Any impairment 1s recognised |
in the profit and loss account in the year in which it occurs Where impairments have been identified 1n prior years and the recoverable amount was based |
onvalye in use, an updated discounted cash flow 5 prepared annually to assess whether the previous iImpairment in value has reversed When all conditions

are met, the impairment is reversed and recogrused in the profit and loss in the year m which the reversal occurs

Financial instruments
The Compariy 1s hsted on the Alternative Investment Market regulated by The London Stock Exchange 1t 15 not required to adopt FRS 26 ‘Financial
Instruments Measurement’ or FRS 29 ‘Financial Instruments Disclosures’ in these financial statements, and has not efected to voluntanly do so

The Company continues to adopt the amortised cost basis of accounting for financial instrurments, and had not elected to valuntarily apply fair value
measurements of financial mstruments, including dervative financial mstruments

Foreign currencies

Monetary assets and liabihties denorminated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date Transactions in
foreign currencies are recorded at the rates ruling at the date of transaction or, if hedged, at the forward contract rate All differences are taken to the profit
and loss account Further disclosure of the Group s financial risk managernent pohcies 1s n¢luded in note 2 of the conselidated financial statements of the
Group which are separately presented with these Company accounts

Employee share ownership plan (ESOP)
Where the Company s 1ssued share capital is acquired by an ESOP trust sponsored by the Company the cost of acquisition 15 deducted from profit and loss
reserves in accordance with UITF Abstract 38

Employee benefits

Share based payments under long term incentive plans (LTIP)

In accordance with the transttional provisions, FRS 20 has been applied to all grants of equity instruments after 7 Novermber 2002 that had not vested as of
1 January 2005

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certan employees which must be measured at fair value and are recognised as an expense in the

ncorme statement with a corresponding increase in equity The fair values of these payments are measured at the dates of grant, taking into account the

terms and conditions upon which the awards are granted The fair value 15 recognised over the penod during which emptoyees become conditionally

entitled to the awards, subject to the Group’s estimate of the number of awards which will lapse, either due 1o employees leaving the Group prior to vesting

or due to non-market based performance conditions not being met The total amount recogrised in the Income statament as an expense s adjusted to ‘
reflect the actual number of awards that vest !

The Company has not adopted early UITF Abstract 44 'FRS 20 - Group and treasury shares’, which will be mandatory for the Company’s financial year
ending 31 January 2009 The adoption of UITF 44 1n that year will require a restatement of comparative financial statements, with the portion of the fair
value of awards granted to employees providing services to the Company’s subsidiary compantes being recognised as an additional investment in: those
subsidiaries, and not as an expense of the Company The effect of this future restatement has yet to be quantified by the Company
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Notes to the Accounts continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
Employee benefits
Pensions
The Walker Greenbank Group operates both defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes for the benefit of its employees Further details
of these schemes are included in note 22 of the consolidated financial statements of the Group presented within the Annual Report and Accounts

Because of the histonical changes to the Group’s structure anising from acquisitions, disposals, and internal restructuning over a number of years, 1t1s not
readily practicable to identify which company within the Group is directly responsible for the pension obligation of individuals, particularty for pensioners
and deferred pensioners Accordingly, the Company 1s unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and hiabilities on a consistent and reasonable
basis For this reason the Campany has taken advantage of the mult-emplayer option available under FRS 17 Retirement benefits and therefore
recognises the cost of any centributions payable directly in the profit and loss account

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity Costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares are shown inequity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds

Treasury shares

Consideration paid including any directly attnbutable incremental costs (net of income taxes) on the purchase of the Company’s equity share capital
(traasury shares} is deducted frem equity attributable to the Company's equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued Where such shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, 1s
included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity shareholders

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation 1s recognised in respect of trming differences that have oniginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date and that give nise to an
obligation to pay more tax or a right to pay less tax in the future Deferred tax is calculated using the average rates that are expected to apply when the
trming differences reverse, based on tax rates that have been substantively enacted by the balance sheet date No prowision has been made for any hability
ansing from the distnbution of past earmings of subsidrary undertakings Deferred tax assets are only recognised when 1t 1s more likely than not that they
will be recovered in the foreseeable future

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Company All other
leases are classified as operating leases

Assets used by the Company which have been funded through finance leases are capitalised in tangsble fixed assets and the resultng lease obligations are
included in labilities The assets are depreciated over their useful lives and the interest element of the rental obligations 1s charged to the profit and loss
account over the period of the lease, and represents a constant proportion of the balance of capital repayments outstanding

Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease Rent free perods recevable on
entering an operating lease are released on a straight-line basis to the next break point in the lease

2 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

2008 2007
£000 £Q60
Audit fee - fees payable to the Company auditor for the audit of the parent company and the consohidation of the Group accounts 50 50
3 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTCRS
2008 2007
Salary Bonus Benefits Pension Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive Directors
John Sach 210 95 5 32 342 317
Dawid Smallndge 150 68 1 15 234 218
Alan Dix 120 54 1 12 187 169
Non-executive Directors
tan Kirkham 62 - - - 62 58 !
Terry Stannard (appointed 19 September 2007) 5 - - - 9 -
Charles Gray {retured 12 February 2008) 22 - - - 22 22 |
573 217 7 59 856 784

In both years, retirement benefits were accruing to one Director under a defined benefit scheme, who 1s the highest paid Director Accrued annual pension
benefits at the year end were £20,210 (2007 £19,458)

Benefits are accruing under defined contribution schemes for three Directors (2007 three Directors)
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4 EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

2008 2007
£000 £000
Wages and salaries 1,084 1,058
Social secunity costs 134 118
Other pension costs 71 72
Share based payments, including NIC thereon 429 143
1,718 1,391
The average monthly number of employees (including Directors) dunng the year Number Number
Administration 13 13
S TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Plant
landand equipment  Computer
buildings and vehicles assets Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
31 January 2007 5,364 21 16 5.401
Additions 40 29 2 71
Disposals - - - -
31 )anvary 2008 5,404 50 18 5,472
Depreciation
31)anuary 2007 880 16 16 912
Charge 103 - 107
Disposals - - - -
31 Janvary 2003 983 20 16 1,019
Net bock amount
31 January 2008 4421 30 2 4,453
31January 2007 4,484 5 - 4,489
The net book amount of land and bulldings comprises
2008 2007
£000 £000
Freehold land 450 450
Freehold buildings 3.971 4,034
Net book value 4,421 4,484
The value of assets secured under the Barclays faclity was property of £4,421,600 (2007 Burdale faciity - property £4,484,000)
6 INVESTMENTS
2008 2007
Shares in subsidiary undertakings £000 £GOO
Cost
Beginning of year and end of year 44,617 44,617
Provision forimpairment
Beginning of year 1,038 11,367
Reversal of provision - (10329)
End of year 1,038 1038
Net book amount 43.579 43,575
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Notes to the Accounts continued

6 INVESTMENTS CONTINUED
Walker Greenbank PLC 1s registered and domiailed 1n the United Kingdom It is the parent company of the Walker Greenbank Group The prinaipal Group
operating companies that traded durning the year and are wholly owned are as follows

Abaris Holdings Limized registered in England and Wales
Walker Greenbank Inc* incorporated n the USA

Arthur Sanderson & Sons Inc™ incorporated n the USA

Arthur Sanderson & Sons SARL* incorporated in France
Whttaker & Woods SRL incorporated in laly

Investments in Group companies are ordinary shares

* Shares held by subsidiary company

The principal activities of the Group are design, manufacture, marketing and distribution of wallcoverings, furmishing fabrics and associated products for
the consumer market

The carrying value of the investment in Abans Holdings Lirmited 15 reviewed annually by reference to its value in use to the Company The value in use was
calculated using future expected cash flow projections, discounted at 8 48% (2007 75%) on a pre-tax basis, and 1s not intended to reflect a realisable value
on dispesal The review as at 31 Janvary 2007 resulted in a reversal of the imparment of £10,329,000 to investments in subsidiary undertakings held by
the Company

7 DEBTORS
2008 2007
£Q00 E00C
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 18,458 16,717
Other debtors 268 277 I
Prepayments 193 181

18,919 17175

Included within other debtors 15 an amaount repayable after one year of £253,000 (2007 £265,000) Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings are non-
interest bearing and are unsecured These loans are callable on demand by the Company should payment be required, but full settlement within the next
12 months 15 unlikely to be sought

8 CREDITORS DUEWITHIN ONE YEAR

2008 2007

£000 £Q00

Bank term loans {note 9} 400 445
Bank overdrafts 106 1,126
Trade creditors 107 170
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 7500 7477
Other taxes and soqal security 42 39
Other creditors 240 209
Accruals 665 521
9,060 9,987
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9 CREDITORS DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

2008 2007
£000 £G00
Bank term loan 3,400 780

The term loan 1s secured by a floating charge over the property (note 5) Interest 15 charged at 1 25% over base rate (2007 2 2% above one month LIBOR}

Repayment of total borrowings

2008 2007

£000 £000

Over five years 1,800 -
Between two and five years 1,200 334
Between one and two years 400 446
After more than one year 3,400 780
Within one year {note 8) 400 445

3,800 1,225

in July 2007, the Company agreed terms for new facilies frem Barclays Bank PLC replacing the Burdale Financial Linited funding The facilities comprise of
avarable rate term loan secured on the Group s freehold property of £4 millon which is being repaid on a 10 year profile

Between July 2004 and July 2007 the Company had funding from Burdale Financial Limited The three year facility compnised of a vanabte rate loan secured
on the Company s freehold property of £2 million being repaid on a five year profile

Under the new Barclays Bank PLC facilities, the Group are subject to vanous financial covenants which apply to the term loan, including interest cover and
debt service The Group was also subject to similar covenants under the previous Burdale Financial Lirmited funding facilives

Any non-comphance with covenants could, if not remedied or waved, constitute an event of default with respect to any such arrangements The Group
was in fulk comphance with its financial and operational covenants throughout each of the periods presented

There 15 a set off arrangement for Group bank accounts held with the UK cleanng bank

Amounts owed by subsichary undertakings are non-interest beaning and are unsecured These loans are payable on demand by the Company should
payment be reguired, but full settlement within the next 12 months is unlikely to be sought

10 PROVISIONS - DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

2008 2007

£000 £000

Balance at start of the year - -

Charge to profit and loss account 74 -

Balance at end of the year 74 -
The deferred tax hability anses from

2008 2007

£000 £000

Capital alfowances in excess of depreciation 74 -

Unrecogrused deferred tax assets at 31 January 2008 are £1,068,000 {2007 £808,000) relating to tax losses and other short-term timing differences
These will be realised as and when they reverse against surtable future taxable profits

2008 2007

£000 £000

Depreciation in excess of capital allowances 15 14
Tax losses 893 754
Other uming differences 160 40
1,068 808

There are also capital tax losses at 31 January 2008 of £2,485,000 (2007 £2,485,000} but no deferred tax asset has been recognised as it 1s not
considered probable that these losses will be utilised
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‘Notes to the Accounts continued

11 SHARE CAPITAL

Number
Ordinary shares of 1p each of shares £
Authonised share capital
1 February 2007 and 31 January 2008 85,000,000 850,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
1 February 2007 and 31 January 2008 59,006,162 590,062

The Walker Greenbank PLC Employee Benefit Trust {'the trust’} holds 2,549,146 shares (2007 2,549,146) with a cost of £601 202 (2007 £601,202)
and the market value at 31 January 2008 of £1,038,777 (2007 £1,242,709)

During the year Walker Greenbank PLC purchased 1,415,093 ordinary shares of 1 p each at prices ranging from 42 25p to 43 50p per share
and at atotal cost of £611,672 These shares represent 2 4% of the issued shares, and are held in treasury The market value of these shares
at 31 January 2008 was £576,650

The shares held by the trust and the treasury shares are held for the purpose of satisfying awards under long-term incentive plans to Executive Directors
and senior management

Long Term incentive Plan (LTIP)

The Group operates a Long Term Incentive Plan There have been two awards unider this plan, in which Executive Directors and Seruor management of
the Group participate The LTIP has previously been approved by the shareholders at an Annual General Meeting Further details are included in note 24
of the consclidated financial statements of the Group which are separately included within this Annual Report and Accounts

12 SHAREHOLDERS' FUND AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

Share Proft
Share premium and loss Caprtal
capital account account reserve Total
EQOD £000 £000 £OQO £000
1 February 2007 590 457 11,541 41,888 54,476
Accrual for long-term incentive plan liabilities - - 363 - 363
Profit for the year - - 190 - 180
Treasury shares - - (612) - (612)
31 Janvary 2008 590 457 11,482 41,888 54,417
Capital reserve represents £000
Capital redemption reserve for deferred shares 1,003
Capital redemption reserve for ‘B’ shares 40,885
41,888
13 DIVIDENDS
The Directors do not propose a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 January 2008 (2007 Ne dwvidend proposed)
14 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
Annual commitments due under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows
Land and Land and
buildings Other buildings Cther
2008 2008 2007 2007
£000 £000 £000 £000
Operating leases which expire
Within one year - - - -
Between one and five years - - - -
Qver five years 447 - 447 -
447 - 447 -
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15 DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUES OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2008 2007
£000 £000
Forward foreign exchange contracts (110) 45

The Company's U5 based subsichary, Walker Greenbank Inc, sells products to local customers with sales invoiced in US dollars As the Group's presentation
currency i its consoliddated inancial statements 1s sterling it 1s exposed to changes in the reported sterling value of these sales The Company conseders
that it 1s highly probable that future sales of this nature will continue to arise over at least the next 12 months During the second half of the year Walker
Greenbank PLC has entered inito maonthly forward foreign exchange contracts up to January 2009, with a third party, to buy sterling and sell doflars As at
the reporting date the fair value of the forward foreign contracts 1s £110,000 (2607 £nil)

16 CONTINGENT LIABILITY
The Company is party ta a cross guarantee to the borrowings of its subsidiary Abans Holdings Lirited under the funding arrangement with Barclays
Commercial Bank
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Five Year Record

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

UK GAAP UK GAAP UK GAAP IFRS IFRS

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

(restated) {restated)

Turnover 47975 50,611 48332 534369 62,448
Overseas turnover 17517 19,724 18916 18,374 20,908
Operating profit/(loss) - restated (3,159) {2,690) 5,018 3,757 3,961
Operating profits excluding exceptional tems and discontinued operations (3,159} (3.062) 758 2,481 3,961
EBITDA {514} (322) 2,845 4,323 5,783
Profit/{loss) before taxation - restated (4,050) (807) 2,625 2,694 3,099
Capiial expenditure 569 1187 710 1447 1,797
Profit/{loss) per share (761p) (148p) 451p 467p 14 49p
Average number of employees 568 613 539 548 586
Drvidends - - - - -
Shareholders’ funds - restated 8,680 7,070 8,697 12,543 20,799

Dividend per share

The data for 2007 has been restated from UK GAAP to Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards Data prior to 2007 has not been restated

The shareholders funds for 2004 have beer: restated to reflect the implementation of UITF 38 The operating loss far 2005 has been restatad to reflect the
impact of FRS 4

EBITDA 1s based on operating profit before exceptional items

Financial Calendar
Annual General Meeting 23 July 2008 Announcement of half-year results October 2008

Walker Greenbank PLC
Bradbourne Drive

Tilbrook

Miltan Keynes
Budkinghamshire MK7 8BE

T 08708 300365
F 08708300364

www walkergreenbark com
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